
  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Executive Cabinet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda and Reports  
 

For consideration on  
 
 

Thursday, 6th December 
2007 

 
 

In the Council Chamber, Town Hall, Chorley 

 

At 5.00 pm 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 



  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

PROCEDURE FOR PUBLIC QUESTIONS/SPEAKING AT EXECUTIVE CABINET MEETINGS 
 

� Questions should be submitted to the Democratic Services Section by midday, two 
working days prior to each Executive Cabinet meeting to allow time to prepare appropriate 
responses and investigate the issue if necessary. 

� A maximum period of 3 minutes will be allowed for a question from a member of the public 
on an item on the agenda.  A maximum period of 30 minutes to be allocated for public 
questions if necessary at each meeting. 

� The question to be answered by the Executive Member with responsibility for the service 
area or whoever is most appropriate. 

� On receiving a reply the member of the public will be allowed to ask one supplementary 
question. 

� Members of the public will be able to stay for the rest of the meeting should they so wish 
but will not be able to speak on any other agenda item upon using their allocated 3 
minutes. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Chief Executive’s Office 

Continued…. 
 

� (01257) 515151   Fax (01257) 515150 www.chorley.gov.uk 

Please ask for: Tony Uren  
Direct Dial: (01257) 515122 
E-mail address: tony.uren@chorley.gov.uk 
Date: 27 November 2007  
 

Chief Executive:  Donna Hall 
 

 
 
 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
EXECUTIVE CABINET - THURSDAY, 6TH DECEMBER 2007 
 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the Executive Cabinet to be held in the Council Chamber, 
Town Hall, Chorley on Thursday, 6th December 2007 at 5.00 pm. 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
1. Apologies for absence   
 
2. Declarations of Any Interests   
 
 Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any personal interest in respect of 

matters contained in this agenda. If the interest arises only as result of your membership 
of another public body or one to which you have been appointed by the Council then you 
only need to declare it if you intend to speak. 
  
If the personal interest is a prejudicial interest, you must withdraw from the meeting. 
Normally you should leave the room before the business starts to be discussed. You do, 
however, have the same right to speak as a member of the public and may remain in the 
room to enable you to exercise that right and then leave immediately. In either case you 
must not seek to improperly influence a decision on the matter. 
 

3. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 10) 
 
 To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Executive Cabinet held 

on 15 November 2007 (enclosed). 
 

4. Public Questions   
 
 Members of the public who have requested the opportunity to ask a question(s) on an 

item(s) will be asked to put their question(s) to the respective Executive Member(s).  Each 
member of the public will be allowed to ask one supplementary question within his/her 
allotted three minutes. 
 

MATTERS REFERRED BY THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (INTRODUCED 
BY THE CHAIR OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, COUNCILLOR D 
EDGERLEY) 
 
5. Introduction of Neighbourhood Working in Chorley  (Pages 11 - 24) 
 
 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee considered at its meeting on 12 November 2007 

the attached report of the Director of Streetscene, Neighbourhoods and Environment on 

Town Hall 
Market Street 

Chorley 
Lancashire 

PR7 1DP 



the recommendations of the Environment and Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
following its inquiry into Neighbourhood working. 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee, after assessing the two potential options for 
neighbourhood working in Chorley, has recommended the Executive Cabinet to support 
the adoption of the following system: 
 

• That there be 8 Neighbourhood Areas based on the Neighbourhood Policing 
Areas. 

• That consideration be given to Parishing the non-parished areas of Chorley. 

• That consideration be given to the future of Target Area Partnerships.   
 

EXECUTIVE LEADER'S ITEMS (INTRODUCED BY THE EXECUTIVE LEADER, COUNCILLOR 
P GOLDSWORTHY) 
 
6. Forward Plan  (Pages 25 - 30) 
 
 To receive and consider the Council’s Forward Plan for the four months period 

commencing 1 December 2007 (enclosed). 
 

CORPORATE POLICY AND PERFORMANCE ITEM (INTRODUCED BY THE EXECUTIVE 
MEMBER, COUNCILLOR MRS P CASE) 
 
7. Joint District and Lancashire County Council Locality Plan for Chorley  (Pages 31 - 

36) 
 
 Report of Assistant Chief Executive (Policy and Performance), with attached draft Plan 

(enclosed). 
 

8. Chorley Partnership - Progress update  (Pages 37 - 54) 
 
 Report of Assistant Chief Executive (Policy and Performance) (enclosed). 

 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION ITEM (INTRODUCED THE EXECUTIVE 
MEMBER, COUNCILLOR P MALPAS) 
 
9. Housing and Planning Delivery Grant - Consultation On Allocation Mechanism  

(Pages 55 - 62) 
 
 Report of Corporate Director (Business) (enclosed).  

 
10. Growth Point Designation - Expression of Interest Bid  (Pages 63 - 66) 
 
 Report of Corporate Director (Business) (enclosed). 

 
RESOURCES ITEMS (INTRODUCED BY THE EXECUTIVE MEMBER, COUNCILLOR A 
CULLENS) 
 
11. Capital Programme, 2007/08 - Monitoring Report  (Pages 67 - 80) 
 
 Report of Assistant Chief Executive (Business Transformation) (enclosed). 

 
12. Capital Programme, 2008/09 - 2010/11   
 
 Report of Assistant Chief Executive (Business Transformation) (enclosed). 

 
13. Approval of draft Budget proposals for 2008/09 for consultation purposes  (Pages 

81 - 100) 
 



 Report of Assistant Chief Executive (Business Transformation) (enclosed). 
 

14. Approval of Council's Mid-Term Financial Strategy for 2007/08 - 2009/10   
 
 Report of Assistant Chief Executive (Business Transformation) (enclosed). 

 
15. Any other item(s) that the Executive Leader decides is/are urgent   
 
16. Exclusion of Press and Public   
 
 To consider the exclusion of the press and public during consideration of the following 

items of business on the ground that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Paragraphs 1 and 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government Act 1972. 
 

EXECUTIVE LEADER'S ITEM (INTRODUCED BY THE EXECUTIVE LEADER, COUNCILLOR 
P GOLDSWORTHY) 
 
17. Market Walk - Phase 2 Update  (Pages 101 - 106) 
 
 Report of Assistant Chief Executive (Business Transformation) and Corporate Director 

(Business) (enclosed). 
 

HEALTH, LEISURE AND WELL-BEING ITEM (INTRODUCED BY THE EXECUTIVE MEMBER, 
COUNCILLOR M PERKS) 
 
18. People Directorate - Management Restructure  (Pages 107 - 110) 
 
 Report of Corporate Director (People) (enclosed). 

 
RESOURCES ITEM (INTRODUCED BY THE EXECUTIVE MEMBER, COUNCILLOR A 
CULLENS) 
 
19. Financial Shared Services   
 
 Report of Assistant Chief Executive (Business Transformation) (enclosed). 

 
 
 
Yours sincerely 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Chief Executive 
 
 
ENCS 
 
 
Distribution 
 
1. Agenda and reports to all Members of the Executive Cabinet, Lead Members and Chief 

Officers for attendance. 
 



This information can be made available to you in larger print 

or on audio tape, or translated into your own language.  

Please telephone 01257 515118 to access this service. 
 

 
 

 

 
 

01257 515822 

01257 515823 



Executive Cabinet 1  
Public Minutes of meeting held on Thursday, 15 November 2007 

Executive Cabinet 
 

Minutes of meeting held on Thursday, 15 November 2007 
 

Present: Councillor Pat Case (Deputy Leader of the Council in the Chair) and Councillors 
Eric Bell, Alan Cullens, Peter Malpas, Mark Perks and John Walker 
 
Also in attendance:   
 
Lead Members: Councillors Mrs Marie Gray (Lead Member for Town Centre), Harold Heaton 
(Lead Member for Development Control), Geoffrey Russell (Lead Member for Finance) and 
Iris Smith (Lead Member for Licensing) 
 
Other Members: Councillors Ken Ball, Henry Caunce, David Dickinson, Dennis Edgerley, 
Anthony Gee, Daniel Gee and Mrs Stella Walsh 

 
 

07.EC.119 APOLOGY FOR ABSENCE  
 

An apology for absence was submitted on behalf of the Executive Leader and Chair 
(Councillor Peter Goldsworthy). 
 

07.EC.120 DECLARATIONS OF ANY INTERESTS  
 

There were no declarations of interest by any of the Executive Members in any of the 
agenda items. 
 

07.EC.121 MINUTES  
 

The minutes of the meeting of the Executive Cabinet held on 4 October 2007 were 
confirmed as a correct record for signature by the Executive Leader. 
 

07.EC.122 PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 

The Executive Cabinet had not received any requests from members of the public to 
ask a question(s) on any of the meeting’s agenda items. 
 

07.EC.123 AUDIT COMMISSION - APPLICATION FOR CPA RE-CATEGORISATION  
 

The Deputy Leader of the Council reported receipt of a letter from the Audit 
Commission confirming that the Regional Panel that had considered the Council’s 
application for CPA re-categorisation had determined that the Council had submitted 
sufficient evidence of improvement to warrant a corporate re-assessment of the 
Council’s current score.  The application had been assessed against a criterion that 
there would be a reasonable prospect of the Council ultimately achieving a 
reclassified score. 
 
The Council would be notified in due course when the Authority’s CPA score would be 
re-assessed within a national programme. 
 
Decision made: 
 
That the notification be welcomed. 
 

07.EC.124 FORWARD PLAN  
 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 1



Executive Cabinet 2  
Public Minutes of meeting held on Thursday, 15 November 2007 

The Executive Cabinet received the Council’s Forward Plan setting out details of the 
potential key decisions to be made by the Executive Cabinet or individual Executive 
Members during the four months period commencing 1 November 2007. 
 
Decision made: 
 
That the November Forward Plan be noted. 
 

07.EC.125 JOINT WORKING WITH BLACKPOOL COUNCIL ON POLICY AND 
PERFORMANCE  

 
The Chief Executive submitted a report on a proposal for Chorley Council to work 
jointly with Blackpool Borough Council in the field of policy and performance 
management. 
 
Blackpool Council had requested the support of Chorley Council’s Assistant Chief 
Executive (Policy and Performance) and her team of Performance Advisors and 
Communications Manager in the restructure of its Policy Team, a review of the 
Authority’s LSP and its Community, Corporate and Marketing/Communities Strategies, 
and strengthening of its performance management frameworks. 
 
The report highlighted the potential benefits of the initiative to both Authorities, 
pointing out that the proposal acknowledged the skills and abilities within Chorley 
Council’s Policy and Performance Directorate; would provide existing staff with 
valuable experience of working within a unitary authority; and accorded with the 
concept of shared value for money services.  The part-time joint working venture was 
expected to operate initially up to March 2008 and would generate a flat fee income to 
Chorley Council of £25,000. 
 
Decision made: 
 
That approval be given to the commencement of the joint working initiative 
between Chorley and Blackpool Borough Council in the field of policy and 
performance management. 
 
Reason for decision: 
 
The proposal is in line with the Council’s ambition to develop shared services with 
other Councils, to reduce costs, and to improve service quality. 
 
Alternative option(s) considered and rejected: 
 
None. 
 

07.EC.126 PERFORMANCE MONITORING REPORT - SECOND QUARTER OF 2007/08  
 

The Executive Cabinet considered a report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Policy 
and Performance) which set out and reviewed the Authority’s performance in the 
delivery of the key projects and measures in the Corporate Strategy and against 
national Best Value Performance Indicators (BVPIs) during the second quarter of 
2007/08 ending on 30 September 2007. 
 
The report revealed an overall commendable performance in the delivery of the 
Corporate Strategy’s key projects, with 30 of the 44 projects having been completed 
and the remaining 14 progressing on course.  75% of the Corporate Strategy 
indicators had either met or exceeded their target. 
 
Overall, BVPI performance had been good and the Council’s quartile positioning 
remained positive with 58% of BVPIs showing consistent or improved performance. 18 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 2



Executive Cabinet 3  
Public Minutes of meeting held on Thursday, 15 November 2007 

(55%) of indicators were included in the top quartile nationally, with 66% of BVPIs 
being on course to meet their target by the year end. 
 
The members were informed that only 2 indicators relating to early retirement and the 
average length of stay in bed and breakfast accommodation were included in the 
bottom quartile nationally.  Action Plans to improve performance had been produced 
for each of the BVPIs which had failed to reach its target over the last two quarters.  
With regard to BVPI performance in respect of the use of bed and breakfast 
accommodation, both the action plan and a later report on the Executive Cabinet’s 
agenda would be recommending the transfer back to the Council of responsibility for 
homelessness services. 
 
In response to the opinion expressed by a few Members present at the meeting that 
the broader strategic housing issues impacting on the demand to accommodate 
homeless people should be addressed, the Corporate Director (Business) confirmed 
that all factors influencing the BVPI, including current processes and procedures, the 
causes of homelessness and the provision of affordable houses for sale or rent, would 
be assessed. 
 
Decision made: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

07.EC.127 DIRECTION OF TRAVEL SELF ASSESSMENT, 2007  
 

The Executive Cabinet received a report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Policy and 
Performance) which enclosed a copy of the Council’s Direction of Travel Self-
Assessment report for 2007.  The document had been sent to the Audit Commission 
to be taken into account in the production of its Direction of Travel Assessment of the 
Council to be included in the Annual Audit and Inspection letter to be published in 
March 2008. 
 
The report demonstrated and highlighted each of the significant achievements of the 
Authority across each of its four priority areas over the past 12 months in its quest to 
deliver better services and outcomes to its residents.  The achievements had been 
recognised by a number of external bodies through awards and commendations, 
which were listed in the Self Assessment document. 
 
The Executive Member for Streetscene, Neighbourhoods and Environment  reported 
receipt of a letter from the Home Office acknowledging the Council’s achievements in 
the field of community safety and the Member complimented the Chief Executive and 
the Council’s staff who had contributed to the high level of service provision. 
 
Decision made: 
 
That the report and Direction of Travel Self Assessment for 2007 be noted. 
 

07.EC.128 MOVING FORWARD WITH PROJECT AND PROGRAMME MANAGEMENT  
 

The Executive Cabinet received a report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Policy and 
Performance) reviewing the Council’s project and programme management 
achievements and outlining the planned actions to further strengthen the systems. 
 
The report, firstly, provided an overview of the Council’s past achievements in the field 
of project and programme management, including the development of a management 
toolkit, which had been recognised nationally as a best practice tool. 
 
Secondly, the report outlined the actions put in place to address the small number of 
risks identified by the recent internal audit of project management. 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 3



Executive Cabinet 4  
Public Minutes of meeting held on Thursday, 15 November 2007 

 
Finally, the report referred to the outcome of a recent regional survey commissioned 
by the North West E-Government Group which had compared the Council’s project 
management performance with other regional authorities.  The survey had revealed 
the maturity of the Council’s management approach and processes to be above 
average for six of the nine themes measured. 
 
The report concluded that, overall, the authority’s project and management systems 
were robust and effective, and that the Officers were actively addressing the means of 
improving a small number of areas (eg training, capacity and governance 
arrangements) in order to maintain the Council’s high reputation in the area of project 
management. 
 
Decision made: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

07.EC.129 CIVIC EVENTS WORKING GROUP  
 

The Executive Cabinet received the minutes of the Civic Events Working Group held 
on 12 October 2007. 
 
The Working Group had considered both the arrangements for the Mayoral Civic 
Event to be held on Friday, 16 May 2008 following the inauguration of the new Mayor 
at the Annual Meeting on 17 May, and an update of the plans for the civic 
commemoration of Remembrance Sunday, 11 November 2007. 
 
A number of Members commended the past services of Peter Doyle who had 
resigned recently from the post of Mayor’s Attendant. 
 
Decision made: 
 
That the minutes of the Civic Events Working Group be noted and approved. 
 

07.EC.130 FORMALISING JOINT LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK WORKING 
AND PRODUCTION OF JOINT CORE STRATEGY  

 
The Corporate Director (Business) presented a report seeking Members’ instructions 
on the adoption of the most appropriate means of formalising the current joint working 
arrangements between Chorley, Preston and South Ribble Councils on the Local 
Development Framework (LDF) Core Strategy and other planning policies with a view 
to the production of a joint Core Strategy for the Central Lancashire area. 
 
A formalised working arrangement would entail the three authorities entering into a 
local agreement to cover relevant areas (ie governance; project management and co-
ordination; administration; procurement; and conflict resolution). 
 
The report explained and commented on the two options for formalised models of joint 
working laid out in Sections 28 and 29 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004.  The Section 29 option would involve a more formal joint working approach 
requiring the establishment of a Joint Committee.  The three authorities, however had 
recommended the adoption of a more informal approach under Section 28, under 
which the three authorities would enter into an agreement to prepare a joint Core 
Strategy.  It would be possible for that agreement to include provision for an informal 
Joint Advisory Body, which would make recommendations on aspects of the Core 
Strategy to the constituent authorities for their determination.  Decisions at key stages 
would still need to be taken by each authority’s Executive or full Council. 
 
Decision made: 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 4



Executive Cabinet 5  
Public Minutes of meeting held on Thursday, 15 November 2007 

 
That the Council be recommended to support the Section 28 option in principle 
to formalise the joint working arrangements between the Chorley, South Ribble 
and Preston Councils leading to the production of a joint LDF Core Strategy, 
subject to the detailed wording and later approval of a local agreement 
document. 
 
Reason for decision: 
 
The adoption of the Section 28 option will allow the Council to continue with joint 
working with Preston and South Ribble Councils on a formal basis that still requires 
final decisions to be taken by the respective Councils. 
 
Alternative option(s) considered and rejected: 
 
The other statutory options would be more formal and reduce/remove decision making 
powers from individual Councils.  The only other option is to not formalise our 
arrangements and just work together on evidence gathering and sharing practice.  
However this would mean a joint Core Strategy involving Chorley could not be 
produced and so the opportunity to full co-ordinate LDF planning across Central 
Lancashire would be missed. 
 

07.EC.131 CHORLEY COUNCIL'S ACTIONS TO REDUCE CARBON EMISSIONS AND 
IMPACT ON CLIMATE CHANGE  

 
The Executive Cabinet received a report of the Corporate Director (Business) detailing 
the actions and measures that the Council had either instigated or were proposing to 
develop to reduce its carbon emissions in order to mitigate the impact of global 
climate change. 
 
The initiatives initiated by the Council in its community leadership role to combat 
climate change included: 
 

• the formation of the Climate Change Task Group comprising all Heads of 
Service with a remit to examine all the Council’s activities and produce a 
Climate Change Strategy within the next 6 months to reduce the Council’s 
environment footprint; 

• the Council’s membership of the Local Government Information Unit Carbon 
Trading Pilot Project set up to assist and advise local authorities and 
organisations on the reduction of carbon emissions; 

• the provision of a baseline survey on energy consumption within the Council’s 
operational properties by Liberata; 

• the introduction of a sustainable procurement policy; and  

• the addition of a new priority to develop local solutions to global climate 
change in the LSP’s refreshed Community Strategy. 

 
The current activities would form part of the wider Climate Change Strategy, which 
would also contain further programmed actions. 
 
Decision made: 
 
That the report be noted and that the future actions proposed be supported.  
 

07.EC.132 SALE OF LAND AT FAIRVIEW FARM, ADLINGTON  
 

The Corporate Director (Business) presented a report seeking approval to 
the transfer of an area of land at Fairview Farm, Adlington to Places for 
People Housing Association at a nil value for the development of affordable 
housing. 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 5



Executive Cabinet 6  
Public Minutes of meeting held on Thursday, 15 November 2007 

 
The Executive Cabinet, at its meeting in June 2007, had supported the 
transfer of the land for the purpose of providing 42 units of social rented or 
low cost houses for sale. 
 
The Corporate Director of Governance advised the Members that a general 
consent of the Secretary of State would apply to the proposal to improve the 
social wellbeing of the area, as the value of the land to be disposed of did 
not exceed £2m. 
 
Members requested the provision of measures to safeguard the affordability 
of the proposed dwellings and to ensure that the best balance of houses 
available for sale and rent was achieved.  
 
Decision made: 
 
That the Council be recommended: 
 
(1) to approve the transfer of land at Fairview Farm, Adlington to Places 

for People Housing Association at nil value, subject to the 
Association obtaining funding from the Housing Corporation in the 
2008-2011 National Affordable Housing Programme  and satisfactory 
nomination rights being negotiated; 

(2) to authorise the Officers to examine appropriate mechanisms which 
can be agreed to ensure that the dwellings constructed retain their 
affordability upon resale or reletting. 

 
Reasons for decision: 
 
 

1. To ensure that a supply of low cost and social housing is maintained in the 
Borough.  

 

2. The Council has a corporate target of providing 250 units of affordable 
housing by 2009, last year a total of 9 units were completed and none 
were granted planning permission. This development alone has the 
potential to provide almost 20% of the corporate target. 

 

3. Places for People have also indicated that they will recycle £900,000 of 
their Social Homebuy Grant on the development, which in turn reduce the 
amount that is requested from the Housing Corporation. 

 

4. The development of the site was identified in the Council’s 2005 Housing 
Strategy as a proposed development of key strategic relevance. 

 

5. If successful the development will provide approximately 42 units of 
affordable housing, It is currently proposed to place five 2-bed houses and 
nine 3-bed house on the site for social renting, and twelve 2-bed houses, 
three larger 2-bed houses, and thirteen 3-bed houses for low cost sale, 
however ongoing discussions are taking place with Development Control. 

 
6. If Places for People Housing Association are unsuccessful in the bid for 

funds, the land would remain in Council ownership and it would be able to 
enter into negotiations with other providers. 

 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 6



Executive Cabinet 7  
Public Minutes of meeting held on Thursday, 15 November 2007 

7. The Housing team are currently negotiating over nomination rights to the 
development. Although not agreed it is envisaged that the Council will 
have 100% nomination rights to initial lets and 50% of all subsequent lets. 

 
Alternative option(s) considered and rejected: 

 
8. Transfer of the land at market value, the scheme would be at risk due to 

the additional funding required from the upcoming National Affordable 
Housing Program 2008-2011. The consequence of requesting additional 
funding is less funding will be available for other proposed new 
developments within the borough. The Housing Corporation who fund the 
National Affordable Housing Program may choose not to offer funding to 
the development due to high costs per unit. 

 

9. Transfer the land to another Registered Social Landlord. The Council 
could negotiate with another social housing provider, however, discussions 
with Places for People have been ongoing for a number of years and any 
agreement reached with another Association would ‘sour’ the working 
relationship between the Council and Places for People, who are the 
borough’s second largest housing provider. Any Housing Association 
would be faced with the same difficulties in securing funding if purchasing 
the land at market value. 

 

 
 

07.EC.133 CENTRAL LANCASHIRE HEALTH AND WELL BEING BOARD  
 

The Corporate Director (People) submitted a report recommending the Council’s 
membership of the Central Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Board to be 
established by the Central Lancashire Primary Care Trust. 
 
The principal intention of the Board would be to maximise partnership working 
between the PCT and local authorities with the general aim of improving the 
health and wellbeing of local residents. 
 
Decision made: 
 
That approval be given to the Council’s membership of the Central Lancashire 
Health and Wellbeing Board. 
 
Reason for Decision: 
 

The Board will enable senior decision makers to foster good relationships, to 
develop joint training opportunities across their structures and explore innovative 
approaches to improving the population’s health and wellbeing and to reduce 
health inequalities. 
 
Alternative option(s) considered and rejected: 
 
None 
 

07.EC.134 REFUSE AND RECYCLING CONTRACT - PROCUREMENT EVALUATION 
MODEL  

 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 7



Executive Cabinet 8  
Public Minutes of meeting held on Thursday, 15 November 2007 

The Executive Cabinet considered a report of the Director of Streetscene, 
Neighbourhoods and Environment  seeking Members approval of the criteria to 
be used in the evaluation of tenders received for the new Refuse and Recycling 
Collection Contract in accordance with the Council’s Contract Procurement 
Rules. 
 
The suggested criteria based on an evaluation of various weightings would allow 
Members’ engagement in the assessment process. 
 
Decision made: 
 
That the evaluation criteria and weighting system proposed in the submitted 
report be approved for use in the evaluation of the tenders submitted as part of 
the procurement of the next refuse and recycling contract. 
 
Reason for decision: 
 
To ensure that the procurement process complies with the Council’s Contract 
Procurement Rules and ensures that the Council can obtain the most 
economically advantageous bid for the service.  
 
Alternative option(s) considered and rejected: 
 
None. 

 

 
 

07.EC.135 REVENUE BUDGET, 2007/08 - MONITORING  
 

The Executive Cabinet received a report of the Assistant Chief Executive 
(Business Transformation) monitoring the Council’s financial performance during 
the second quarter period of 2007/08 in comparison with the budgetary and 
efficiency savings targets for the current financial year in respect of the General 
Fund. 
 
The report revealed a forecast overspend of £91,000, but envisaged that further 
savings to be identified during the remainder of the financial year would ensure 
that a balanced budget was achieved at the year end. 
 
While no specific remedial action was recommended at this stage, the report 
pointed to a number of areas that would require close monitoring (ie the 
achievement of corporate savings and efficiency targets; increased refuse 
collection costs; concessionary travel and benefit costs). 
 
The report also recommended the transfer back to the Borough Council of 
responsibility for the management of homelessness from Chorley Community 
Housing. 
 
Decisions made: 
 
1.  That the report be noted. 
 
2.  That notice be given to Chorley Community Housing that it is the Council’s 
intention to terminate the current agreement for them to provide the 
Homelessness service for the Council. 
 
Reasons for decisions: 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 8



Executive Cabinet 9  
Public Minutes of meeting held on Thursday, 15 November 2007 

 
To ensure that the Council’s budgetary targets are achieved and that satisfactory 
and effective processes are adopted for the management of the homelessness 
service. 
 
Alternative option(s) considered and rejected: 
 
None. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Executive Leader 
 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 9



Agenda Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
 

Updated Template July 2007  

 

 
Report of Meeting Date 

Environment and Community 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

Cllr Greg Morgan-Chair 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
12 November 

2007 

 

INTRODUCTION OF NEIGHBOURHOOD WORKING IN 

CHORLEY 

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1. The Environment and Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel has completed its inquiry 
into Neighbourhood Working and makes the following recommendations.  

 

RECOMMENDATION(S) 

2. That Overview and Scrutiny Committee consider this report for recommendation to 
Executive Cabinet.  

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT 

3. The Environment and Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel has undertaken an inquiry 
into Neighbourhood Working. 

This report makes recommendations for the adoption and implementation of a system of 
neighbourhood working for Chorley. 
 
If adopted the system would provide for: 
 
The establishment of neighbourhood teams. 
Support for working with existing neighbourhood based groups. 
A funding mechanism to support local initiatives. 
The reinforcement of the role of the ward Councillor in neighbourhoods 
Support for relatively deprived and poorly organised neighbourhoods. 
 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 

(If the recommendations are accepted) 

4. People will feel and be involved in their communities. 
            Services will be improved by local influence and delivery. 
            Community confidence and cohesion will be built. 
 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

5. The panel considered a wide range of neighbourhood working models as part of the inquiry 
process. 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 11



 
CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
 
6. This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives: 
 

Put Chorley at the heart of regional 
economic development in the 
central Lancashire sub region 

 Improved access to public services � 

Improving equality of opportunity 
and life chance 

 
� 

Develop the character and feel of 
Chorley as a good place to live 

 
� 

Involving People in their 
Communities 

 
� 

Ensure Chorley is a performing 
Organisation 

 
� 

 

BACKGROUND 
 
7. The Environment and Community Overview and scrutiny panel has: - 

  
 Commissioned a report from a special advisor [“The scope and prospects for 

neighbourhood working in Chorley” - Partners in Change].  This report posed a 
number of questions, which the Scrutiny panel accepted as the basis for continuing the 
inquiry. Obtaining the answers to these questions was the key output of the inquiry.  

 
 Held a number of inquiry hearings 
 
 Interviewed and questioned witnesses from Partners such as the Police service, Registered 

social landlords, Community Organisations, Parish Councils, Active Citizens, other Local 
Authorities, third sector organisations and private individuals. 

 
 Held a listening day at the St. Lawrence’s centre 
 

Undertaken a site visit to the Great Lever Neighbourhood Management Area in Bolton 
where board members, councillors and officers were interviewed. 

 
8. The Scrutiny Inquiry has heard evidence that: 
 

8.1 Chorley has existing strengths in neighbourhood representation, especially through the 
23 Parish Councils and the 3 Target Area Partnerships [PAICE, SWITCH and Clayton 
Brook Together]. The scrutiny panel has determined that the Council should build on 
these existing strengths and assets. 

 
8.2 Key front line services in particular Police; streetscene, leisure and housing report a 

high degree of existing commitment to neighbourhood working. They co-operate well 
together. Three of these services already have designated neighbourhood workers. 
The fourth (leisure) is ready and able to move in this direction. These services report 
experience and ability in attracting other partners – for example, social services, 
education – as needed to look at particular pieces of work (e.g. supporting vulnerable 
families). A proposal based on existing strengths and familiarity with joint working is 
likely to be less costly and more sustainable than alternatives trying to bring together 
services and personnel without this background. The scrutiny Inquiry has often heard 
about the need to work from what exists and not impose additional demands and 
structures. 

 
8.3 These services have front line responsibility for issues that most concern residents – 

crime, anti social behaviour, youth provision, environment and parking. 
 
8.4 The Target Area Partnerships and the Parish Councils will be reluctant to accept new 

commitments that require additional meetings or other demands on time. In most cases 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 12



it would not be practical or desirable to try to provide a dedicated neighbourhood 
management service for each one. We have also heard that many witnesses feel the 
need for a service that is able to respond to more local groups. This suggests a need 
for a solution that is flexible and responsive to opportunities to meet with 
neighbourhood representatives on their own terms without demanding that people form 
new bodies structured to the convenience of professional management rather than to 
that of volunteers.  

 
8.5 We need also to link with Community Forums, or any community engagement structure 

that may replace them, without sacrificing the ability to empower groups at a more 
localised level. Again this points to a need for flexibility. 

 
8.6 The 3 Target Area Partnerships despite being essentially a creation of the Community 

Safety Partnership have reported difficulties with support in respect of community 
development, communications and administration.  

 
8.7 The Parish Councils do not feel they have a ‘champion’ in the district council in the way 

that the Target Area Partnerships do. They felt that there may be a risk of alienating 
these existing structures if a solution is produced that appears to make additional 
demands on the limited time and resources of volunteers and/or to marginalise and 
diminish the contribution these bodies make.  There is little will or capacity to generate 
new structures. These considerations point to a solution that reassures these bodies 
and puts those wishing to participate at the heart of neighbourhood working.   

 
8.8 The 3 Target Area Partnerships and some (but not most) parish councils are interested 

in engaging positively with an extension of neighbourhood working. Some  
residents groups are also interested but these link with the Target Area Partnerships or 
Parish Council structures. We also heard that solutions need to avoid making 
consistent demands on all to engage in a similar way. The intention is to be flexible, 
response and accommodating.    
 

8.9 There are uncertainties around the short term future of the environment affecting 
neighbourhood working – thinking here in particular of the outcome of the Lancashire 
Partnership - LAA Neighbourhood Dimension pilot in Clayton Brook* and any resultant 
commitment of the County Council to operate at small area level, the wider consultation 
on Lancashire’s neighbourhood empowerment policy; and the new experience of 
Community Forums.  

 
Again this supports a solution that is flexible and responsive.  Neighbourhood working, 
we felt, should be considered a journey, not a destination. 
 
*[The Draft Final report of the Chorley Pilot available at 30 October broadly supports 
the proposals here and in particular highlights the contributions from: 
 
The successful partnership working established through the safer and Stronger 
Communities block. 
The Stronger and More Involved Communities theme group of the LSP 
The production of local profiles and action plans monitored as part of the Local 
Strategic Partnership Performance Management framework 
The strengthening and development of Community Development support for 
communities.] 

 
8.10 Channels of communication which are able to ‘cascade’ both up and down so that 

strategic priorities and information support neighbourhood empowerment, which can 
operate at the smallest practical scale are important. 

 
8.11 Resourcing and organisation should contain additional costs at sustainable levels. Any 

neighbourhood working proposal must however recognise and provide for costs for 
community development and communications.  

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 13



 
8.12 At one of the Pathfinder areas [Bolton], how Neighbourhood Working had delivered 

measurable improvements in satisfaction and achieved some of its original aims of 
reducing relative deprivation. 

 
8.13 At Bolton the make up of the responsible board and the recruitment and appointment of 

active community members was considered vital to success. Their appointment and 
selection process impressed us and we were shown how this had improved the 
effectiveness of neighbourhood management and created a more sustainable future. 

 
8.14 As widely reported in the literature it is the community confidence building aspect of 

neighbourhood management that helps to ensure its success in the longer term. 
 

MODEL FOR NEIGHBOURHOOD WORKING 
 
9. Drawing on this evidence the panel considered three models of neighbourhood working for 

Chorley. We rejected one model as being too expensive and demanding of other resources. 
 

We are proposing one model is adopted in Chorley and that we adopt the Area Teams 
approach but also include for an element of capacity building using community 
development techniques, which are well established in Chorley in the Target Area 
Partnerships. These would be cascaded into other areas on the same model.  

 

9.1 Neighbourhood Team Approach 
 
 In this approach the effort would be concentrated on a particular theme, or related 

group of themes of community concern.  Implicit in this approach is a Borough-wide 
coverage with similar opportunities, though not necessarily equality of effort, in each 
neighbourhood. 

 
 A repeated feature of the Scrutiny hearings in Chorley was an enthusiasm for this 

type of approach based on these community concerns: 
 

 9.1.1 Quality of life: those things that make somewhere a good place to live, such as 

working on and improving local environmental quality 

 9.1.2 Support for the neighbourhood: being involved and proud to live in a 

neighbourhood and being consulted about local issues and feeling that you can 

affect the use of resources. 

 9.1.3 Confidence in local service providers: knowing problems will be addressed, 

including prompt and effective community and individual feedback and 

accountability. Partners working together to built both community capacity and 

confidence in service providers. 

 9.1.4 Feelings of safety outside the home at night: having the confidence to be 
outside the home day or night so that greater use can be made of Greenspace 
and other community facilities. 

 
9.2 An important related theme to much of the evidence was both perceived and real inter-

generational tension manifest by: 
 

• Mutual misunderstanding and intolerance 

• Perceived problems from shared use of space 

• A desire to develop diversionary activities for young people 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 14



• A desire from young people to make a contribution to their local environment 

and society. 

9.3 The core of the proposal is for “Neighbourhood Teams” [NTs] to be formed for 
delivering key front-line services on a neighbourhood basis. These will be based on 
those services that now have a commitment to working together and managing 
services on a neighbourhood basis.  

 
9.4 Each NT would prepare an annual action plan for its neighbourhood.  The action plan 

would be evidence based and would accept reasonably felt community concerns as a 
valid evidence base so that the information advising the action plan would commonly 
be: 

 
1) Crime, disorder and environmental data analysed through MATAC 
2) Super output area profiling data supplied by Chorley Council. 
3) Existing Parish Plans. 
4) Health inequalities data supplied by the Primary Care Trust. 
5) Results of a facilitated action planning process managed through the 

Community forums or faith and community groups. 
6) Local environmental, crime reduction and asset management proposals 

from local groups, active citizens and ward Councillors. 
 

9.5 It would be implemented by: 
 

9.5.1 Building on existing structures such as MATAC, Neighbourhood Policing and 
the close and effective working of the Crime and Disorder Reduction 
Partnership 

 
9.5.2 Progressing the work already done in restructuring the management of 

environment, streetscene and crime and disorder operations by both 
strengthening and deepening this integration by: 

 

• Developing neighbourhood Streetscene strategies 

• Undertaking a comprehensive asset register of public space and 
developing local care partnerships, and community management of suitable 
spaces. 

• Further restructuring street care operations to concentrate on 
neighbourhood management satisfaction as well as asset management and 
maintenance. 

 

9.5.3 Managing the risk of operational failure by concentrating initially on this basket 
of issues which are easier to deliver and buy-in more easily obtained because 
the evidence is that people understand and relate to the objectives and 
outcomes 

 
9.5.4 Basing the organisation on existing neighbourhood boundaries, which are 

understood and at least partly based on “natural” neighbourhoods. 

 

9.5.5 In this latter case Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be asked to finalise a 
recommendation from two potential footprints based on either; 

 

• 8 neighbourhoods based on the Neighbourhood Policing areas [Option 1 
attached] or  

• 7 neighbourhoods based on the Lancashire County Council electoral 
divisions [Option 2 attached] 

 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 15



The panel were mindful of the view that quality of life issues were inextricably linked 
with not just relative inequality of opportunity but in some neighbourhoods pockets of 
real health inequality, which could respond to neighbourhood managed health 
interventions. 
The panel felt that neighbourhood managed health interventions such as smoking 
cessation, alcohol harm reduction and the promotion of active lifestyles was the 
logical next progression for the neighbourhood teams, when augmented by health 
care resources. 

 
9.6 The panel recommend that the following structures and arrangements be put in 

place: 
  

 The neighbourhood team core management be: 
 

• Police (Community beat managers) 

• Streetscene (Neighbourhood officers) 

• Leisure (generic youth, sport and arts workers) 

• Social housing (where applicable – neighbourhood officers from CCH and PfP) 
 
9.7 Each team will have a nominated leader who will be answerable to the management 

board of each neighbourhood. 
 
9.8 The teams will involve other services either on an ad hoc project basis or by 

recruitment over the longer term. Team members must be empowered to make 
decisions on local service provision within agreed parameters. 

 
9.9 Each NT will establish a communication hub or base in the neighbourhood. They will 

have freedom to do this and this hub may be for example a school, simply a notice 
board, a temporary mobile office, a community centre or village hall etc. These will not 
need to be staffed but there will be a commitment to have a presence in the same way 
that the PACT arrangements work. The panel heard that, whilst the community 
appreciated the effort devoted to the current PACT process a more involving process 
with more real time feedback would be appreciated. 

 
9.10 The Panel has heard that reputable governance arrangements need to be established 

for the Neighbourhood Teams. A potential, but as yet undeveloped, role for the Local 
Strategic Partnership was an option but in the mobilisation phase it was envisaged that 
the teams would be accountable to the Neighbourhood Coordinator who would develop 
a more structured governance model in the first year of operation. 

 
 Community engagement  

 
9.11 Each NT will have a commitment to report to its local community with a “Management 

Board” of ward councillors and a community representative providing community 
administrative oversight to ensure that another tier of local governance does not 
impose additional burdens. 

 
9.12 This reporting will not be a formal written report but is designed to support and enhance 

the role of the local Ward Councillor. The panel felt that this type of informal oversight 
was more fruitful and engaging and more meaningful to the type of problems the NTs 
were likely to resolve. 

 
9.13 NTs will also report periodically to each Parish or Town Council in its area and keep 

Target Area Partnerships and organisations representing local opinion and concern 
informed of what is going on. 

 
9.14 The community representative would be appointed following advertisement against a 

job description with the Council acting as the appointing body. 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 16



 
9.15 The panel agreed that effective communication chains are essential to this proposal. 

The panel also agreed that, traditional, or additional, communication methods would 
exert a very strong negative influence on success and recommend that feedback to 
board members, groups and active citizens using effective mobile working technology 
is a requirement. 

 
9.16 NTs will respond to local street groups, action groups etc. These will normally be short-

life groups stimulated by local concern and/or by the NT itself. Where groups emerge 
with a longer-term representative function then the NT will co-opt a representative onto 
the management board for the life of the project. An example of such interests might be 
the local Tree Warden, where one has been appointed. 

 
9.17 NTs will be represented at meetings, give basic support to groups in terms of 

understanding and influencing NTs services and other services where NTs can make 
links, and identify needs and opportunities to develop new initiatives to empower 
neighbourhoods. 

 
9.18 PACT meetings will be expanded formally to include environmental and other issues 

and will continue to be the primary face-to-face means of community engagement with 
citizens.  

 PACT will become Partners And Community Together. 

 
 9.19 An additional resource to collate and analyse neighbourhood intelligence and data 

sets, which help with community feedback, will be provided based in the MATAC 
process. 

  
  Characteristically whilst each neighbourhood would have a responsible team 

this resource would be accountable and coordinated from the centre, which 
requires the following total resource for Chorley: 

 

Neighbourhood Coordinator/Analyst at the centre 
8 Neighbourhood Officers 

Generic leisure officer for each neighbourhood 
Neighbourhood Policing team  

Registered Social Landlord Neighbourhood Officer 
in areas where there are significant areas of social 

rented housing. 
Element of “credit” spending allocated at the 

neighbourhood level* 

 

9.19.1 The panel recommend that the "credit"-spending spending element be £500 of 
revenue or capital allocated to each ward councillor which must be spent on 
approved outcomes agreed by a Neighbourhood Management Board-this 
would encourage pooling and cross neighbourhood working.  

 

9.20 The panel also recommend that when the performance of the Community Safety 
Strategy is reviewed at the end of the strategy period of March 2008 that a continuing 
role for the Target Area Partnerships as community development leaders is 
examined.   

 
9.21 The panel also recommend that to assist this process the following be provided. 

 

• Some intensive support for struggling, embryonic or badly represented areas 
that are concentrated in relatively deprived areas determined at April 2008 by 
the review process mentioned above. The purpose of this is to encourage and 
develop a voluntary and faith sector community development role and would 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 17



provide each group typically with a continuing level of “light touch” support 
consisting of: 

 

1. Guaranteed 50 days a year of facilitation by a Community Development 
worker, essentially someone who is “on their side” and to whom they can 
turn for ideas, support and when things go wrong. This worker would help 
the groups with action/locality planning, supporting them to review local 
needs and opportunities, map out their futures and reflect on past 
achievements and difficulties. This worker can mediate with other 
organisations and agencies if required and unblock relationships with 
power holders such as the local authorities. 

 
2. A 3-year credit fund of £5000, per deprived neighbourhood, of unrestricted 

money to be spent over the three years to support their basic infrastructure 
and communications. 

[For this purpose a deprived neighbourhood is defined as a neighbourhood 
containing at least one, or a substantial part of at least one, super output 
area in the 20% most deprived by reference to the index of multiple 
deprivation]   
Using this definition three neighbourhoods would qualify irrespective of 
which model is selected based on the most recent available data - Indices 
of Multiple Deprivation 2004. 

  

3. Networking experience, by the organisation, by Chorley Council of an 
annual neighbourhood conference. 

 
The Panel also recommend that a separate senior council officer act as the 
Champion for each relatively deprived neighbourhood. 

 

9.22 An opportunity, subject to agreement, for a “community anchor” organisation to agree 
to support each reformed TAP from April 2008. 

There would need to be a coincidence of interest between the community anchor and 
the TAP but the Panel suggests examples. 

 

Target Area Partnership Community Anchor 
Chorley East Groundwork 

Chorley South West Chorley Community Housing 
Clayton Brook  Places for People 

 

9.23 Development of the existing TAP model in Chorley 
 
 This option also includes a development role to extend this TAP model to other, less 

represented, areas of the Borough this is because: 
 

• Reliance in all these models is placed on the utilisation of existing groups. This 
works well for most of the area and is what our witnesses said they preferred. 
However it runs the risk of leaving the non-parished areas without community 
representation. 

 

 9.24 It is recommended that a community development function be supported which 
would: 

 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 18



• Take responsibility for identifying or developing cohesive community groups that 
would be prepared to undertake a neighbourhood management role in non-
parished or TAP areas. 

• Potentially these might include: 

 
Existing resident or special interest groups 
Voluntary or faith groups 
Schools 
Ad-hoc groups of active citizens 
Short term project or “friends” groups. 

 
 9.25 The Panel also recommend that the Community Development worker also supports: 
 

• The identification of rural areas suffering from pockets of deprivation and isolation 

• The identification of poverty and deprivation concentrated in micro-pockets with 
little prospect of the emergence of champions or without the right critical mass for 
large-scale interventions. 

• The Ward councillors in decision making about the preferred projects to be 
supported by credit spending by being the accountable officer for the 
expenditure. 

 
10. Resource requirements of these recommendations. 
 

Nature of resource Annual budget Notes. 
Additional 2 Neighbourhood 
Officers 

£40000  

Neighbourhood 
Coordinator/Analyst 

£30000  

Members credit budget £23500 47 x £500 
Target area partnership 
support 

£5000 Guaranteed for 3 
years 

Community development 
worker 

£25000  

Rural isolation budget £5000  
   
Total £128500  

 

It is intended that this budget would replace the discretionary support budget of 
£50000 currently available resulting in a net budget requirement for £78500. If the 
credit budget were determined to be all capital funding then this would further 
reduce the revenue requirement to £55000. 

 
IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT 
 
11. This report has implications in the following areas. 
 

Finance � Customer Services   
Human Resources � Equality and Diversity � 

Legal �   

 

 
JOHN LECHMERE 
DIRECTOR OF STREETSCENE, NEIGHBOURHOODS AND ENVIRONMENT 
 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 19



There are no background papers to this report. 

    

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID 

John Lechmere/Paul Lusk 5720 1 October 2007  

 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 20



A
g
e
n

d
a

 Ite
m

 5
A

g
e
n
d
a
 P

a
g
e
 2

1



A
g

e
n
d
a
 P

a
g
e
 2

2

T
h

is
 p

a
g
e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n

k



A
g
e
n

d
a

 Ite
m

 5
A

g
e
n
d
a
 P

a
g
e
 2

3



A
g

e
n
d
a
 P

a
g
e
 2

4

T
h

is
 p

a
g
e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n

k



CHORLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL FORWARD PLAN 
FOR THE FOUR MONTH PERIOD 1 DECEMBER 2007 TO 31 MARCH 2008

This Forward Plan sets out the details of the key decisions which the Executive Cabinet, individual Executive Members or Officers expect to take during 
the next four month period. The Plan is rolled forward every month and is available to the public 14 days before the beginning of each month. 

A Key Decision is defined as: 

1. Any executive decision (as opposed to a regulatory decision) which is likely to result in the Council incurring significant expenditure or the making 
of savings where there is: 

• A change in service provision that impacts upon the service revenue budget by £100,000 or more, or 

• A contract worth £100,000 or more, or 

• A new or unprogrammed capital scheme of £100,000 or more. 

2. Any executive decision which will have a significant impact in environmental, physical, social or economic terms on communities living or working 
in two or more electoral wards  - This includes any plans or strategies which are not within the meaning of the Council’s Policy Framework set out 
in Article 4 of the Council’s Constitution. 

3. As a matter of local choice, the Forward Plan also includes the details of any significant issues to be initially considered by the Executive Cabinet 
and submitted to the Full Council for approval. 

The current members of the Executive Cabinet are: 

Councillor Peter Goldsworthy  Leader of the Council  
Councillor Patricia Case  Deputy Leader and Executive Member for Corporate, Policy and Performance 
Councillor Eric Bell  Executive Member for Streetscene, Neighbourhoods and Environment 
Councillor Alan Cullens  Executive Member for Resources 
Councillor Peter Malpas  Executive Member for Economic Development and Regeneration 
Councillor Mark Perks Executive Member for Health, Leisure and Well Being 
Councillor John Walker Executive Member for Customer, Democratic and Legal 

Anyone wishing to make representations about any of the matters listed below may do so by contacting the relevant officer listed against each key 
decision, within the time period indicated. 

Under the Access to Information Procedure Rules set out in the Council’s Constitution, a Key Decision may not be taken, unless: 

A
g

e
n
d
a
 Ite

m
 6

A
g
e
n
d

a
 P

a
g

e
 2

5



• It is published in the Forward Plan; 

• 5 clear days have lapsed since the publication of the Forward Plan; and 

• If the decision is to be taken at a meeting of the Executive Cabinet, 5 clear days notice of the meeting has been given. 

The law and the Council’s Constitution provide for urgent key decisions to be made, even though they have not been included in the Forward Plan in 
accordance with Rule 18 (General Exception) and Rule 19 (Special Urgency) of the Access to Information Procedure Rules. 

Copies of the following documents may be inspected at the Town Hall, Chorley, PR7 1DP or accessed from the Council’s website: www.chorley.gov.uk

• Council Constitution 

• Forward Plan 

• Reports on the key decisions to be taken 

• The minutes or decision notice for each key decision, which will normally be published within 5 working days after having been made 

Members of the public are welcome to attend meetings of the Executive Cabinet which are held at the Town Hall, Chorley. The dates and times of the 
meetings are published on www.chorley.gov.uk or you may contact the Democratic Services Section on telephone number 01257 -515118 for further 
details. 

D Hall 
Chief Executive 

Publication Date: 16 November 2007 

A
g

e
n
d
a
 Ite

m
 6

A
g
e
n
d

a
 P

a
g

e
 2

6



Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to 
be taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Proposed 
Consultees 

Method(s) of 
Consultation 

Documents to 
be 
considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Representation
s may be made 
to the following 
officer by the 
date stated 

Introduction of 
Neighbourhood 
Working in 
Chorley 

Executive 
Cabinet

Executive 
Member for 
Streetscene, 
Neighbourhood
s and 
Environment

6 Dec 2007 Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee and 
Strategy Group. 

Draft proposals 
to be available 
on the Council’s 
web-site and 
circulated to 
consultees.

Report of the 
Corporate 
Director 
(Neighbourhoo
ds) 

Corporate 
Director 
(Neighbourhood
s) Tel: 01257 
515720 
john.lechmere@
chorley.gov.uk 
Wednesday, 21 
November 2007 

Approval of the 
Council's Mid-
Term Financial 
Strategy for 
2007/08 - 
2009/10 

Executive 
Cabinet

Executive 
Member for 
Resources

6 Dec 2007 Citizens’ Panel, 
Business 
community, 
Strategy Group 
and Staff 
members.  

Draft Strategy 
to be available 
on the Council’s 
web-site and 
circulated, 
when 
appropriate, to 
consultees.  

Draft Strategy Assistant Chief 
Executive 
(Business 
Transformation) 
Tel: 01257 
515480 
gary.hall@chorl
ey.gov.uk 
Wednesday, 21 
November 2007 A

g
e
n
d
a
 Ite

m
 6

A
g
e
n
d

a
 P

a
g

e
 2

7



Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to 
be taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Proposed 
Consultees 

Method(s) of 
Consultation 

Documents to 
be 
considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Representation
s may be made 
to the following 
officer by the 
date stated 

Approval of draft 
Budget 
proposals for 
2008/09 for 
consultation 
purposes 

Executive 
Cabinet

Executive 
Member for 
Resources

6 Dec 2007 Citizens' Panel, 
Business 
community, 
Strategy Group 
and staff 
members.  

Draft proposals 
to be available 
on the Council's 
web-site and 
circulated to 
consultees. 

Approval of 
draft Budget 
proposals for 
2008/09 for 
consultation 
purposes 

Assistant Chief 
Executive 
(Business 
Transformation) 
Tel: 01257 
515480 
gary.hall@chorl
ey.gov.uk 
Wednesday, 21 
November 2007 

Approval of a 
Joint District and 
LCC Locality 
Plan for Chorley 

Executive 
Cabinet

Executive 
Leader

6 Dec 2007 Lancashire 
County Council 
and Strategy 
Group.  

Draft Plan to be 
circulated to 
consultees.

Locality Plan Assistant Chief 
Executive 
(Policy and 
Performance) 
Tel: 01257 
515323 lesley-
ann.fenton@cho
rley.gov.uk 
Wednesday, 21 
November 2007 A

g
e
n
d
a
 Ite

m
 6

A
g
e
n
d

a
 P

a
g

e
 2

8



Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to 
be taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Proposed 
Consultees 

Method(s) of 
Consultation 

Documents to 
be 
considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Representation
s may be made 
to the following 
officer by the 
date stated 

Approval of Pay 
and Workforce 
Strategy 

Executive 
Cabinet

Executive 
Member for 
Resources

27 Mar 2008 Trade Union's, 
Staff Members, 
Staff Forum 
and Strategy 
Group  

Draft Plan to be 
circulated and 
available for 
comments on 
the website

Draft Plan Corporate 
Director of 
Human 
Resources Tel: 
01257 5151 
lorraine.charles
worth@chorley.
gov.uk 
Monday, 10 
March 2008 

Approval of 
Streetscene 
Strategy 
Document 

Executive 
Cabinet

Executive 
Member for 
Streetscene, 
Neighbourhood
s and 
Environment

27 Mar 2008 Strategy Group  Draft 
documentation 
to be circulated 
to consultees.

Strategy 
Document 

Corporate 
Director 
(Neighbourhood
s) Tel: 01257 
515720 
john.lechmere@
chorley.gov.uk 
Monday, 10 
March 2008 A

g
e
n
d
a
 Ite

m
 6

A
g
e
n
d

a
 P

a
g

e
 2

9



A
g
e
n
d

a
 P

a
g

e
 3

0

T
h
is

 p
a

g
e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



 

 

 

 
 

Updated Template July 2007  

 

 
Report of Meeting Date 

Assistant Chief Executive (Policy 
and Performance) 

(Introduced by the Executive 
Member for Corporate Policy and 

Performance) 

Executive Cabinet  
6th December 

2007 

 

JOINT LOCALITY PLAN 2007/08 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1. To present the Joint Locality Plan 2007/08 to Members for consideration and approval. 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S) 

2. That the proposed Joint Locality Plan is adopted 
3. To delegate to the Executive Member for Policy and Performance the decision to approve 

any amendments made by Lancashire County Council’s Cabinet or the Lancashire Locals 
Committee. 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 

(If the recommendations are accepted) 

4. The development and publication of a joint locality plan is a key part in improving two-tier 
working between Chorley Borough Council and Lancashire County Council. It is a key project 
within the Corporate Strategy, supporting the long term outcome 6.2, ‘An Excellent 
Community Leader’. 

5. The joint nature of the plan means that some small changes may be made after approval by 
Executive Cabinet. Delegating responsibility to the Executive Member for Policy and 
Performance will ensure the plan is published in an efficient and timely manner. 

 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

6. N/A 

 
CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
7. This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives: 

Put Chorley at the heart of regional 
economic development in the 
central Lancashire sub region 

 Improved access to public services  

Improving equality of opportunity 
and life chance 

 Develop the character and feel of 
Chorley as a good place to live 

 

Involving People in their 
Communities 

 Ensure Chorley is a performing 
Organisation � 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Agenda Item 7Agenda Page 31



BACKGROUND 

 

8. The October 2006 Local Government White Paper states that ‘status quo is not an option in 
two-tier areas if councils are to achieve the outcomes for place shaping and service delivery 
that communities expect and deliver substantial efficiency improvements’. 

 
In response to the White Paper, county and district partners across Lancashire produced 
‘Transforming Local Government in Lancashire’. It outlined how partners would develop 
relationships to work more closely and effectively together towards ‘enhanced two-tier’ 
working. This included the development of a joint Locality Plan. 
 
Two district councils, Chorley and Rossendale, worked with the County Council to develop 
locality plans which other districts could use as models when developing locality plans for 
their area. At a recent pan-Lancashire officer meeting, Chorley’s locality plan was seen as a 
strong example, and many councils will now be using the best practice developed by 
Chorley. 

 

CHORLEY’S JOINT LOCALITY PLAN 

 
9. The Locality Plan for Chorley was developed for the first time in autumn 2007. The first plan 

has been used as an opportunity to develop an initial methodology for its development and 
identify the most appropriate way to take forward the plan in future. 

 
10. The aim of the Locality Plan is to encourage a better, and closer, working relationship 

between Chorley Borough Council and Lancashire County Council, where opportunities for 
joint working are identified and pursued. In addition, it is hoped that the plan will set out 
clearly to the public the roles of the respective Councils in Chorley and some of the main 
projects that will be carried out in the next twelve months either by one of the Councils, or 
jointly in partnership. 

 
11. The plan was based on the priorities contained within the sustainable community strategy. It 

was hoped that this way, there would be a clear link between the priorities of both Councils 
and the Locality Plan. The plan should also contain all the main projects that will be 
undertaken in the Borough over the next year. 

 

12. The Policy and Performance Directorate coordinated Chorley Council’s response to the 
locality plan. Information was gathered from directorates about schemes that will be 
delivered in the next 12 months that will be tangible and noticeable to the public. These 
schemes could be delivered by Chorley Council alone, or in partnership with Lancashire 
County Council.  

 
13. The initial information gathered from directorates in Chorley was used as a basis for 

discussions with Lancashire County Council to identify more effective ways of working 
together and to develop a joint locality plan. In it, projects and planned work were identified to 
illustrate the different projects that local government would carry out in the next twelve 
months, and who would undertake it. It is hoped that the projects selected would all be 
tangible work that a member of the public would be able to identify when it was undertaken. 

 
14. One of the initial benefits realised through the development a locality plan is that it has 

helped to crystallise what Lancashire County Council does in the Chorley area. Where 
previously many projects carried out by the County Council would not be co-terminous with 
the Chorley area, it has been possible to identify the benefits that will be felt in Chorley. 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 7Agenda Page 32



15. The Locality Plan is attached for approval. As it is a joint plan, it will also be considered at 
Chorley’s Lancashire Locals committee on 10th December 2007, and then approved by 
Lancashire County Council’s Cabinet. Once fully approved by both Councils, the plan will be 
published and made widely available, by displaying it in public buildings and making copies 
available to any interested parties. 

 

IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT 
 
16. This report has no implications in the following areas. 
 

Finance  Customer Services   
Human Resources  Equality and Diversity  
Legal    

 
 
 
LESLEY-ANN FENTON 
ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE (POLICY AND PERFORMANCE)  
 
 

There are no background papers to this report. 

    

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID 

Chris Sinnott 5337 14
th

 November 2007  

 

 

Agenda Item 7Agenda Page 33



Agenda Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



In Chorley this year your Councils will…
OUR
AIMS

Ensuring that Chorley is the pulse of a 

thriving central Lancashire economy
Improving life chances for all 

Building Stronger Communities with improved 

access to public services

Developing the character and feel of Chorley as a 

good place to live, work and play

Undertake the second phase of the 
Market Walk redevelopment in Chorley 
Town Centre, developing the range and 
quality of the shopping experience in 
Chorley.

Undertake improvements of the Flat 
Iron and Covered Markets.

Upgrade the street furniture and work 
to improve shop fronts on Market 
Street.

Encourage investment and job 
creation at the regional strategic site at 
Buckshaw and develop a plan for the 
future.

Encourage medium size business 
growth in the Buckshaw Link.

Create niche workspace in the 
Enterprise Village to encourage new 
business growth.

Continue to develop the highly successful 
Get Up and Go programme, offering 3,000 
free places to young people for activities 
throughout the summer.

Introduce Play Rangers to play areas to ensure 
that children can get the most from the play 
areas in a safe environment.

Adopt new sports pitches: Fairview in 
Adlington and Gillibrands in Chorley.

Help more people become more involved in 
regular physical activity by implementing the 
play strategy, the local sport and physical 
activity alliance and introducing more activities 
for older people.

Run a series of community skip days, to help 
people dispose of bulky waste who would not 
otherwise be able to organise removal.

Learn more about our customers to make 
sure that we offer everyone the best service 
possible and tailor our services to respond to 
and meet people’s needs.

Invest in upgrading the facilities in Astley Park.

Improve the facilities at Duxbury Golf Club, 
including a new club house.

Deliver a programme of alley gate installations 
to increase residents’ feelings of safety in their 
neighbourhoods.

Collect recycling in a different way from 
apartments and housing with central bin stores 
to help residents recycle more. This is currently 
being piloted in Buckshaw Village.

Improve the facilities at Brinscall Swimming Pool.

Improve the facilities at Clayton Green Leisure 
Centre.

Support Chorley Town Centre 
Regeneration Improvements.

We will work with our partners to 
provide resources to help all learners 
(aged 14-19) to progress to further 
learning, training or employment.  This 
will include innovative approaches 
to delivery which will inspire our 
young people to achieve and equip 
them with the skills, qualifications 
and experiences required to meet 
the challenges of the 21st Century.  
This will include vocational learning 
opportunities, access to ‘construction’ 
training, a new Diploma in Engineering 
and a range of Young Apprenticeship 
programmes and activities.

Make available a climate change fund to 
support community projects on climate 
change.

We will provide support to schools in Chorley 
to help them provide for, or ensure access to, a 
range of further services and activities beyond 
the school day, to help meet the needs of 
pupils, their families and the wider community.

Work with partners to develop high quality 
services to serve the whole community, but 
mainly families with children under the age of 
5 from newly designated children’s centres 
at Buckshaw Primary School, Clayton Brook 
Primary School, Coppull Primary School, and 
Duke Street Nursery School.  This includes the 
provision of services targeted at those who 
require them most. 

Make funding available to support Chorley 
Schools developing ways to encourage 
sustainable and healthier ways to travel to 
school, particularly walking and cycling, and 
help to reduce car use by parents, pupils and 
staff.  

Implement our Customer Access Strategy, to 
provide improved ways for our customers to 
access all the services provided by Lancashire 
County Council.

Work with young people in Chorley to provide 
opportunities for them to be involved in 
projects to improve their local area.  A special 
fund will be available to young people in 
Chorley to support this work.

Support the Chorley Youth Council – a group of 
young people in Chorley who meet together to 
try to ensure young people’s opinions are heard.

Build a new Chorley Register Office with 
improved facilities and public access. Building 
works expected to begin in February/March 
2008.

Carry out refurbishments to Chorley Town 
Centre Library, including disabled toilet 
facilities.

Carry out a refurbishment to improve facilities 
and accessibility to the Bankside Learning 
Disability Day Centre.

To support the local Voluntary, Community 
and Faith Sector groups in Chorley through 
the allocation of grants through the Chorley 
Lancashire Local Committee

Continue to build on the Parish and Town 
Council Charter – developing the way we work 
with Parish and Town Councils across Chorley

Provide a roadside footway between Bretherton 
and Croston.

Provide a further 10 Mobile Safety Traffic Camera 
sites across Chorley.

Install traffic calming measures to: 

    mid 2008)

    housing development) work to start March
    2008

Carry out improvements to signs and road 
markings, along with speed limit reductions to:

Carry out improvements to signs and road 
markings to Cowling Brown, Heath Charnock.

Look to provide new traffic signals to Wheelton 
Bypass/Blackburn Road junction. 

As part of the West Pennine Moors partnership 
projects programme, improve Healey Nab 
Woodland, including increasing biodiversity and 
the development of a new mountain bike trail. 

Promote cycling in the Borough through a series 
of new cycle paths and improvements to existing 
paths around the Borough. In addition, publish a 
cycle map of Chorley in summer 2008.

Improve the accessibility of Chorley by 
completing the Eaves Green Link Road.

Continue to work together on the 
opening of Buckshaw Railway Station – 
anticipated for March 2009. 

Develop with our partners proposals 
for a Green Technology Centre at the 
Regional Investment Site, Buckshaw 
Village.  The Centre will provide advice 
and support to existing and new 
businesses across Central Lancashire 
who specialise in environmental 
technologies.

Work with other key partners to ensure that 
there is a coordinated response to problems 
faced by some of the most vulnerable 
households in Chorley.

Work together, and with partners, to increase 
access to young people’s sexual health 
services and workers to help reduce teenage 
pregnancy rates in Chorley.

Support the development of District Children’s 
Trust Arrangements. This will bring together 
organisations so they can place the needs of 
children, young people and their families at the 
centre of what they do, and improve the way 
that they work together.

Work together, and with partners, to provide 
information, advice and practical help to 
people who need extra help so they can stay 
at home and retain independence.

Implement the Chorley Transport and Service 
Accessibility Plan – to make sure that people 
can reach services they need, such as 
education, healthcare, employment and leisure 
facilities.

Work together to create more opportunities for 
children and young people. For example, in the 
development of youth provision at Applejax.

Our local councillors will work together on 
the Chorley Lancashire Local Committee 
influencing local county council services in 
Chorley. Members of the public, are invited to 
attend these meetings and share their views.

Chorley Council, with financial support from 
Lancashire County Council, will improve 
access to Yarrow Valley Country Park.  This will 
enable wheelchair access from the car park to 
the lodges and the base of the Weir.

Develop the Chorley Older People’s Strategic 
Partnership Board - bringing together older 
people and other organisations - to give older 
people the opportunity to shape the services 
that most affect them.  

Continue to develop a Shared Services Contact 
Centre, improving customer access to Chorley 
Council and Lancashire County Council 
services.

Work together to develop provision for a 
community facility at Buckshaw Village.

Investigate options for the future viability of 
the Information and Advice centre on Market 
Street, Chorley.

Make improvements in the Big Wood / 
Copperworks Wood areas, as part of a 
Reclamation and Management of Derelict Land 
(ReMADE) project, which will improve public 
safety, access and enjoyment, as well as provide 
an extension of Yarrow Valley Country Park and 
footpath between Yarrow Valley County Park and 
Astley Park in Chorley. 

Develop a strategy that will help Chorley respond 
to the challenges posed by Climate Change.

Develop a framework to encourage the growth of 
affordable housing stock in Chorley.

Identify opportunities for young people to 
become involved in local arts/creative projects.

Work with the police and other key agencies to 
improve Community Safety. For example, by 
organising ‘action weeks’ to target particular 
areas.

OUR VISION
Chorley Council and Lancashire County Council want to deliver the best standard of local government to Chorley. We believe that by working 

together, we can achieve more for Chorley. This locality plan sets out just some of the things that will be achieved in the next 12 months.

C
H

O
R

L
E

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 W

IL
L

L
A

N
C

A
S

H
IR

E
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 W

IL
L

T
O

G
E

T
H

E
R

 W
E

 W
IL

L

DRAFT LOCALITY PLAN

Agenda Item 7Agenda Page 35



Agenda Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
 

Updated Template July 2007  

 

 
Report of Meeting Date 

 Assistant Chief Executive (Policy 
& Performance)  

 
Introduced by the Executive 

Member for Corporate Policy and 
Performance 

Executive Cabinet 
6

th
 December 

2007 

 

THE CHORLEY PARTNERSHIP – A PROGRESS REPORT 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1. To outline the improvements made to the Chorley Partnership (the Local Strategic 
Partnership for Chorley) since last quarter, to keep Cabinet informed about the current 
work being co-ordinated by the LSP and future plans for the LSP. 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S) 

2. That the report be noted. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT 

• The Sustainable Community Strategy, including the Chorley Partnership’s vision for 
Chorley, and its 5 key priorities, has now been published. 

• The LSP is now starting to scope out possible partnership projects for 2008/9 building on 
the success of 2007/8 projects. 

• The LSP is engaged with the revision of the LAA process and is currently debating and 
responding to consultation on the 35 national indicators Chorley would like to see 
considered for negotiation with central government, including 5 locally developed indicators 
specific to Chorley. 

• The IDeA Peer Review – the final report from the IDeA was very positive, recognising the 
great strides we have made in improving partnership working, evidenced by the innovative 
work that is taking place.  It also outlines areas for further development, which are being 
incorporated into an LSP Improvement Plan. 

 
 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 

 

3. To keep Members informed about the progress of and work being carried out by the 
Chorley Partnership, and to update Members on the LSP’s role in the 2008 LAA 
negotiations, as well as possible projects for the Partnership for the 2008/9 financial year. 

 

 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

4. N/A 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 37



 
CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
 
5. This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives: 
 

Put Chorley at the heart of regional 
economic development in the 
central Lancashire sub region 

X Improved access to public services X 

Improving equality of opportunity 
and life chance 

X Develop the character and feel of 
Chorley as a good place to live 

X 

Involving People in their 
Communities 

X Ensure Chorley is a performing 
Organisation 

X 

 
PROGRESS TO DATE 

 

1. Since the last quarter’s progress report to Executive Cabinet, more positive work has been 
carried out through the LSP. 

 

2. The Sustainable Community Strategy for Chorley has been published and an 
accompanying action plan is being produced with full partner involvement. 

 
3. The Local Public Service Board and Executive have been amalgamated into one decision-

making body, streamlining the amount of LSP meetings partners attend and driving forward 
joint working in Chorley. 

 
4. The 6 projects given injection funding from Chorley Borough Council are progressing well: 
 

Vulnerable Households – the pilot in South Ribble is already being hailed as an example 
of best practice of partnership working, and if proves successful, could attract LAA funding 
in the future.  Currently still in its pilot phase, this two-year project is currently identifying 15 
families in Chorley to work with. 

 

MATAC – this project is already displaying dramatic successes in the reduction of crime in 
targeted hotspots in Chorley and has been hailed as best practice by the Home Office. 

 

Reducing Teenage Pregnancy – the Teenage Pregnancy Action plan is being delivered, 
involving schools and colleges, the youth service, children’s centres, the PCT, etc.  
Initiatives such as young mums talking to teenagers about the reality of parenthood, sexual 
health advice and other initiatives are ongoing. 

 

First Steps – plans are now in place to improve the community centre outside area with 
landscaping and planting schemes, to be maintained by residents.  Groundwork have 
consulted with residents on what sort of design they would prefer and partners such as the 
police and Streetscene, Neighbourhoods and Environment have been consulted on issues 
around community safety, which have also informed the designs. 

 

Marketing Chorley – prominent feature display stands have been produced and are 
situated in key locations throughout the Borough, promoting Chorley as a place to invest.  
The Marketing Chorley action plan is ongoing. 

 

Chorley Community Network – the Stronger and More Involved Communities sub-group 
is making progress with making links with VCF groups in Chorley and so far over 200 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 38



groups have been added to the database.  We are exploring the option of making this 
database available online via the Chorley Partnership website. 

 
5. IDeA Peer Review 
 

The Chorley Partnership underwent a review by the Improvement and Development 
Agency to seek an external perspective on the partnership’s approach to: 

• Achievements and impact 

• Vision and strategy 

• Leadership and relationships 

• Governance and performance 
 

The review team spoke to partners and held focus groups of staff involved with the LSP.  
The final report detailing their findings is attached to this document.  The report recognises 
that whilst it is still early days for the LSP in its current form, the partnership is poised to 
make real difference through joint working in Chorley, evidenced by the 6 projects already 
taking place.  The report highlights  the achievements of the LSP so far, recognises the 
commitment of the Council and its partners, as well as the work that has taken place to 
improve the governance and effectiveness of the Chorley Partnership.  The report also 
suggests areas for continued improvement, such as improving communication within the 
partnership and to press ahead with the delivery of the six LSP-funded projects. 

 
6. Engagement in the Local Area Agreement consultation process 

The Chorley Partnership has been asked by the Lancashire Partnership to respond to 
consultation on the 35 national indicators we would like to see considered for negotiation 
with central government, which best reflect Chorley’s priorities. 
 
The Policy & Performance team have put forward a suggested initial draft list of 35 
indicators they feel best fit the priorities within the Sustainable Community Strategy.  The 
Chorley Partnership Executive is currently debating this list, and the other alternatives, and 
is participating in a county led consultation event on 12

th
 December to refine the final list.  

The deadline for comments on the 35 indicators is 19
th
 December 2007. 

 
7. LSP projects for 2008/9 
 

Work has begun to scope out possible projects for the Chorley Partnership for the next 
year.  At the joint action planning session, and across the theme groups, discussions are 
commencing around a limited number of potential LSP projects for next year.  Examples of 
possible projects so far include: 

 

• Climate change – exemplar households, exemplar businesses, green transport 
plan, promoting the green agenda to small and medium sized businesses, fuel 
poverty, etc. 

• Promoting Cultural Chorley – a common understanding of “what the culture of 
Chorley is”  

• Expanding MATAC to include more information 

• Inter-generation community projects  

• Alcohol harm reduction strategy for Chorley 

• Research into young people using alcohol to find out the scale of the problem and 
to identify best ways of changing young people’s behaviour 

 
Discussions will continue in the theme groups and at the LSP Executive on where best to 
allocate resources, depending on the Council’s budget decisions in the new year. 

 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 39



 
 
 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT 
 
This report has no implications in the following areas. 
 

Finance  Customer Services   
Human Resources  Equality and Diversity  
Legal    

 
 
 

There is one attached paper with this report. 

    

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID 

Claire Thompson 5348 
19

th
 November 
2007 

 

 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 40



The LSP Peer Challenge Partnership 
 

 

 

                

 

The LSP Peer Challenge Partnership 

 

 

 

 

Peer Challenge 

of the 

 
Chorley Local Strategic 

Partnership 
 
 
 
 

November 6/7th, 2007

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 41



ChPartnershipApp0.docclient version 2 

 

1. Executive Summary 

1.1  The Chorley LSP is very new in its current form.  Although there has 
 been a history of partnerships in Chorley for some years, it is only 
 within the last year or so that the current partnership can really be 

 said to have been operating and, even within this time, there have  
 been  further changes to structures and roles. 

 
1.2 The Council has driven the establishment of the current partnership 

and is continuing to provide considerable support through dedicated 

staff and finance for projects.  While, without exception, partners are 
positive about the council’s commitment and recognise its community 

leadership role, they also report that it is sometimes difficult to 
distinguish the partnership from the council. 

 

1.3 The new Chorley Partnership has come a long way in a relatively short 
space of time.  It has achieved a great deal in terms of building the 

infrastructure of the partnership and forming personal relationships 
which are making a significant impact on the way business is done in 
the Borough.  Much remains to be done to ensure that the partnership 

matures and is able to produce concrete achievements which are 
recognised by local people as having made a real difference to their 

lives.   However, there seems no reason to doubt that this is perfectly 
possible provided the current focus and direction is maintained. 

 

2. Background 
 

2.1 The LSP Peer Challenge Methodology has been developed and is 

offered through a partnership between SOLACE Enterprises Ltd, 
Warwick University Business School and the IDeA. 

2.2 The aims of peer challenge are to: 

• Provide an objective, robust and managed external challenge to 
an LSP’s own assessment of its current performance;  

• Encourage thinking about strengths and areas for improvement;  

• Contribute to producing a strong and forward looking 

improvement plan. 

 
2.3 This model of peer challenge involves a team of five people making an 

assessment over a period of two days.  The team comprises a 
facilitator from one of the three provider organisations, a Chief 

Executive and an elected member from other local authorities  and two 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 42



ChPartnershipApp0.docclient version 3 

members who represent other public, private or voluntary sector 
partner organisations   

2.4 Principles on which the approach is based include:  

• Using credible associates and peers who understand the working 

of the relevant type of LSP;  

• Peers who are independent from and acceptable to the LSP; 

• A peer challenge structured around the specially developed LSP 

Benchmark; 

• Written and verbal feedback provided to the LSP by the team.  

2.5 The purpose of the model of peer challenge is to help the LSP to 
ensure that its own assessment is as accurate a reflection of its 
current performance, achievements and future capacity as it possibly 

can be and to give pointers towards future development needs.  

2.6 The Benchmark which provides the framework for the assessment 

covers the following four areas and these are used to structure the 
feedback in this report: 

o Achievements and Impact 

o  Vision and Strategy 

o  Leadership and Relationships 

o  Governance and Performance  

 

3    The Chorley LSP peer challenge process 

3.1 The peer challenge of the Chorley LSP began prior to the on-site period 

with a review of key documents provided on C-D Rom together with a 
self assessment covering the areas of the LSP Benchmark.  

3.2 The challenge team was: 

• Andrew North, Chief Executive Cheltenham Borough Council 

• Cllr James Hakewell, Leader Kettering Borough Council 

• Kim Harper, Chief Executive Derby CVS 

• Kevin Lambert, Chief Superintendent Northumbria Police  

• Patricia Coleman, SOLACE Enterprises Facilitator 

3.3 The evening prior to the visit the team met to make final preparations 
for the peer challenge. The team discussed their views on the 

background information provided by the LSP, agreed the lines of 
enquiry to be pursued during the visit and additional activities and 

documentation which might be needed to gather information. 
 

33..44  TThhee  vvaarriioouuss  mmeetthhooddss  tthhaatt  tthhee  tteeaamm  uusseedd  ttoo  ggaatthheerr  iinnffoorrmmaattiioonn  

iinncclluuddeedd::  

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 43



ChPartnershipApp0.docclient version 4 

• Face to face and telephone interviews with a cross section of 
stakeholders  

• Focus group discussions  
• Additional document reviews 

 
3.5 At the end of each day the team reflected back to the Council, on 

behalf of the LSP, what they thought they were seeing and learning 

which provided an opportunity to steer the team to look at additional 
information if necessary.   

 
3.6 The results of the process outlined above are set out in the remainder 

of this report. In making its comments the team sought to add value 

by concentrating on those areas where, as peers, they were able to 
contribute most to the further development of the LSP.  

3.7 While the team took care to note areas of strengths as well as areas 
for improvement, since the main aim of the challenge process is to 
stimulate improvement, comparatively more attention has been given 

in this report to explaining and evidencing the areas on which the 
team believes the LSP should focus its attention in the future. 

 
4  Headlines 
 
 The Team’s overall assessment of the LSP was of: 

 

“A sea change from a low base, going in the right direction, 
high ambitions and expectations, still early days but now 

poised to deliver real change” 

 

Positives: 
 

o The new Partnership is actively developing its infrastructure, key 
strategies, plans and processes and has established a number of 
significant cross-cutting projects 

 
o This is a Partnership that is keen to learn, is aiming to be 

inclusive and is ambitious for Chorley 
 

o The new Chief Executive and Council Leader, who are 
determined that the Borough achieves, have brought focus 

 
o Partners seem to trust each other 
o There is positive engagement by key partners e.g. Police and 

PCT 
o The private sector is making a significant contribution 
o The Voluntary, Community & Faith sector is feeling positive and 

wanting to be accountable 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 44



ChPartnershipApp0.docclient version 5 

 
o The LSP is now better placed to engage with the next LAA and 

ensure the Borough’s priorities are addressed 

 

Issues to Consider: 
 

o It is time to start consolidating and investing in the 
Partnership’s capacity 

 
o Partnership working involves compromise and “letting go” 

without losing focus – all partners should ensure that they retain 

sensitivity to the needs of different sectors so some don’t get 
left behind 

 
o Partners need to take responsibility for being proactive and not 

wait for the council to always take the lead 

 
o Do more to check back with Partners and the Community about 

proposals 
 

o Who owns the Chorley brand? How far have other Partners 
adopted it? 
 

o Other roles for the LSP may include: 
o Lobbying on behalf of the Borough (e.g. to government) 

o Promoting the Borough’s successes beyond the immediate 
area 

o Celebrating successes of partners, individually as well as 

collectively 
 

 
These headline points constitute the feedback given to the Chief 

Executive of the council at the end of the visit.  They are developed 
further in the main body of this report. 

 

 

5  Achievements and Impact 
 

Strengths 
 
5.1 Partnership working has considerable history in Chorley dating back, 

according to some, to 1996.  During recent years some specific 
partnerships e.g. Community Safety, have been very active and have 

achieved practical outcomes but the overall partnership or LSP did not 
have a good reputation for action and was considered to be largely “a 

talking shop”.    

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 45



ChPartnershipApp0.docclient version 6 

5.2 The inception of the current LSP dates from around the time of the 
arrival of the Borough Council’s Chief Executive and the new 

administration about 18 months ago.    The impact of the new Leader’s 
and Chief Executive’s desire to see the Borough succeed is regarded 

by most partners and stakeholders as the reason for the drive and 
energy which now exists in the partnership. The LSP is now seen as a 
reliable performer by the Government Office. 

 
5.3 Given the newness of the current LSP it would be unrealistic to expect 

much in the way of practical outcomes.  Some practical achievements 
claimed by the LSP e.g. reduction in crime, increase in employment, 
reduction in infant mortality, are either the result of work through 

specific partnerships or the efforts of individual agencies including the 
council. 

 
5.4 However, in the past year the partners in the LSP have worked hard to 

build a new infrastructure and membership.  Six themed sub- groups 

have been established and through the provision of £85,000 of funding 
from the council which has levered in further funding from partners, 

each group has either established or is working to establish a cross-
cutting project through which to deliver the priorities identified in the 

Sustainable Community Strategy. The injection of funding, which has 
now been committed by the council for subsequent years, has had a 
substantial impact in unblocking barriers to partnership working. In 

addition, the council has appointed a full time officer to support the 
LSP and all of the council’s senior managers are fully on board with the 

partnership agenda. 
 
5.5 The LSP is now poised to deliver practical achievements through the 

on-going work of specific partnerships it has subsumed e.g. The Multi-
Agency Tasking and Coordinating Project within the Community Safety 

theme and the new projects which are being established e.g. 
Vulnerable Households. The projects are proving to be extremely 
useful in developing relationships between partners, a culture of 

partnership working and practical approaches.  
 

5.6 The existence of a strong LSP now means that there is much greater 
ability than previously to input to the development of the new LAA and 
to ensure that it incorporates the Chorley Partnership’s priorities. 

 
 
Areas for Development 

5.7 The LSP does not receive Neighbourhood Renewal Funding nor other 

 external grants which would make it easier to support partnership 
 activity.  Therefore it will be essential to begin, as soon as possible, 

 to work towards aligning mainstream budgets to focus on priorities, 
 joining up between services and, where appropriate, to pool 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 46



ChPartnershipApp0.docclient version 7 

 budgets.  If the LSP simply continues  to work through a limited 
 number of projects its impact will, inevitably, be limited. Other 

 partners have indicated a willingness to contribute, alongside the 
 council, to the support costs of the LSP, especially in specific areas 

 e.g. consultation.  This should be encouraged in order that the LSP is 
 seen  genuinely to be a partnership. 
 

5.8 Partners should build on existing experiences e.g. the joint Community 
 Safety Team and consider opportunities to locate and commission 

 services jointly wherever this makes sense.  For example, there would 
 appear to be considerable scope to re-assess the various information 
 and advice outlets within Chorley Town Centre and to co-locate these 

 in a single building e.g. the Borough Council’s Customer Contact 
 Centre, under a Chorley Partnership branding. This would also be 

 extremely helpful in giving the partnership a profile with local people. 
 

6 Vision and Strategy 
 

Strengths 

6.1 The LSP has recently produced a Sustainable Community Strategy.  
This has built on the previous strategy developed in 2005.   The 

strategy contains a clear vision which has been agreed by the partners 
as being distinctive to Chorley and reflecting the Borough’s urban / 
rural mix.  A new set of five priorities have been developed and targets 

have been streamlined and made SMARTer. 
 

6.2 The existence of this strategy will enable alignment of the Borough’s 
Sustainable Community Strategy with that of the county-wide 

partnership –Ambition Lancashire - and the Local Area Agreement, 
both of which are currently being re-freshed. 

 

6.3 The 2005 strategy was developed through extensive consultation.   
 For well thought through reasons, this time there was more limited 

 consultation through partner networks. The Voluntary, Community and 
 Faith sector in particular  were involved in this through the “Stronger 
 and More Involved” sub- group. 

 
6.4 Further strategies are currently being developed which will produce 

added value to the partnership, including a draft Community Cohesion 
Strategy currently out to consultation and a Climate Change Strategy. 

 

6.5 Other important areas identified as priorities include affordable 
housing and health inequalities. 

 

 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 47



ChPartnershipApp0.docclient version 8 

 

Areas for Development 

6.6 The SCS was prepared quite hurriedly in order to feed into the county-

 wide processes for developing the SCS and LAA.  It would be helpful 
 now to begin checking out with partners the implications of the 

 partnership strategy for their own strategies and operational plans. 
 
6.7 Similarly, some of the priorities do not have full sign up.  For example, 

 although teenage pregnancies are an issue county-wide, there is not 
 perceived to be a  particular problem in Chorley but other aspects of 

 health are e.g. alcohol consumption and the health and social care 
 needs of the growing number of elderly people.  The LSP needs to 
 ensure that there  is sufficient space for full discussion about specific 

 priorities for the future. 
 

6.8 The boundaries of the Borough are not coterminous with those of a 
 number of key partners e.g. Police and PCT. These organisations are 
 unlikely to have the capacity in the longer term to support districts at 

 both a strategic and an operational level. It may be necessary to 
 consider a move towards a Central Lancashire LSP (also covering the 

 boroughs of Preston and South Ribble) at some point in the future 
 and, to this end, the CP should welcome and support sub- regional 
 strategies e.g. for Health and Well-being. This would build on 

 current strategic developments across the sub-region e.g. the Local 
 Development Framework. 
  

7 Leadership and Relationships 
 

Strengths 

 
7.1 Although it is still early days, there is undoubtedly trust between most 

partners.  The partnership is seen as inclusive and engagement by all 

sectors is strong.  There is a sense of common purpose and 
commitment by all to the LSP’s overarching strategic objectives. 

 
7.2 Relationships between the leaders of the LSP are strong outside of 

meetings.  A lot of business is done through these informal networks 

e.g. the establishment of Apple Jacks Nightclub for 12-16 year olds. 
These positive inter-personal relationships are a major factor in 

motivating the LSP.  
 
7.3 Engagement by the private sector is stronger than in many LSPs.  Key 

individuals within the private sector are injecting an inspirational and 
dynamic vision of future economic development within the area based 

on clear recognition of its potential as a location for national and multi-
national businesses.  

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 48



ChPartnershipApp0.docclient version 9 

 
7.4 There is now an energy and commitment to the partnership from the 

Voluntary, Community and Faith sector (VCF) sector. This follows a 
somewhat difficult period of readjustment to the new LSP structure 

and arrangements to identify membership from the sector through 
elections, which not all were happy about. The main platform for the 
VCF is through the Stronger and More Involved Sub-group but 

individuals from the sector as also influential in other forums of the 
LSP.  The VCF are, therefore, engaged and want to be fully 

accountable along with other partners. 
 
7.5 In recent months a decision has been implemented to incorporate the 

Local Public Sector Board into the LSP executive structure in order to 
avoid duplication and focus the capacity of public sector partners.   At 

this point, the Leader of the Council took over the role of chair of the 
LSP Executive.  The LSP Board is chaired by an independent business 
consultant who is also has links with the VCF. 

 
7.6 Other council members e.g. relevant Cabinet portfolio holders are 

engaged in the partnership at Executive and Board levels and within 
the sub-groups.  Council members from both main political groups on 

the council are supportive of and engaged with the LSP. Consideration 
is currently being given to how Overview and Scrutiny members might 
contribute to the progress of the LSP. 

 
7.7 Relationships between the Chorley LSP and the county-wide 

partnership – Ambition Lancashire, are developing e.g. through the 
Leader’s role, as Chair of the CP, on the county partnership and 
through the engagement of district level partnership officers in the 

development of the LAA.  While the county council is seen as the least 
engaged partner in the CP and is said to be missing from some key 

projects, the level of engagement is also much improved and in certain 
areas is viewed as strong.  The Locality Plan developed in conjunction 
with the County Council is seen as a major step forward in building the 

relationship. 
 

7.8 South Ribble is the closest neighbour and there is considerable cross-
boundary working and shared projects.  A friendly rivalry appears to 
exist between the two boroughs.   

 
7.9 The LSP newsletter “Chorley People” is attractive and informative and 

is a means of keeping stakeholders in touch with the work of the 
partnership. 

 

 
 

 
 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 49



ChPartnershipApp0.docclient version 10 

 
Areas for Development 

 
7.10 The council must take care to balance its legitimate role as a major 

 player in and effective leader of the partnership, with an approach that 
 encourages consensus and openness to other partners’ views and 

 needs.  There is a danger that the council could become over- 
 dominant and through this leave others behind.  A number of partners 
 expressed the view that it was sometimes difficult to see a distinction 

 between the council and the partnership. This is particularly likely if 
 key meetings are always led by the council, held in council buildings 

 and council members and officers out-number other partners.  The 
 view was also expressed that some other partners can be  marginalized 
 even on issues where they have expertise.  This was not  thought to 

 be deliberate – as the view is that there is a genuine aspiration to 
 be inclusive.   However, there is also a need for partners to be 

 proactive and not always sit back and wait for the council to take the 
 lead. 
 

7.11 Now is the time to begin to invest in the capacity within the LSP.  This 
includes the capacity within sector e.g. the VCF so they do not get left 

behind by the speed and focus of some other key partners e.g. the 
private sector.  There is also a need to provide space for key partners 
e.g. through the Executive to develop greater awareness about the 

challenges for each other’s organisations and the opportunities 
provided through the partnership to collectively work on and support 

the response to these. In particular this means that space must be 
provided outside of formal meetings or through meetings of a different 
style to enable and encourage this sharing. 

 
7.12 Whilst the self-assessment indicates that there is a formal Compact 

 with the VCF in place, this does not yet appear to be the case.  
 Although not a statutory requirement for the LSP the robust 

 development and implementation of a local Compact, championed by 
 the Council, will provide a framework within which the relationship 
 between the voluntary, community and statutory sectors can be 

 further developed.  The Compact is a national model for partnership 
 working underpinned by five codes; partnerships, consultation, 

 funding, volunteering, community groups and equal opportunities.   
Partnership working is a primary theme of Compacts and its principles 
and values need to be fully embedded. It provides conflict resolution 

mechanisms for partners to openly move forward on identified issues, 
a framework for effective interaction and sets down core principles 

that maximise the opportunity for co-ordinated and open interaction 
between partners.  Often LSPs appoint Compact champions, resulting 
in stronger partnerships and the increased development of the local 

voluntary sector. The development of a Chorley Compact 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 50



ChPartnershipApp0.docclient version 11 

implementation plan will ensure good practice in partnership working 
with the voluntary and community sector and generally 

 
7.13 There is also a question remaining for some on whether, even after 
 the process of elections, the VCF is truly representative.  Some harder 
 to reach groups may be missing e.g. Elderly People’s Forum and others 
 may be over-represented e.g. Parish Councils. 

7.14  The LSP has yet to establish arrangements for consulting and 
 engaging with communities.   The council operates 4 Community 

 Forums to which partners are invited to contribute.  Current 
 discussions about a possible move towards neighbourhood 

 management might have  implications for the future of the forum 
 structure.  Any decisions about this need to be seen in the wider 
 context of the relationship between the council and the LSP.  Some 

 partners indicated that they were comfortable with the council taking 
 responsibility for community engagement on behalf of the LSP as part 

 of its legitimate community leadership role.  Other partners e.g. the 
 VCF are unlikely to share this view. 
 

7.14 Related to this is the issue of branding.  The “Chorley” logo used 
 by the council is very strong and attractive.  With the agreement of 

 key partners, it has the capability of  being used as the brand for the 
 place and so be used by all partners to indicate where activities  are 
 being delivered jointly through the LSP. As yet this does not 

 appear to have been discussed.  
 

7.15 In order to ensure that relationships remain positive and support good 
 cross agency working as the partnership matures, to supplement the 
 formal constitution, the LSP should adopt protocols including a code of 

 behaviour and other agreements covering consultation, use of  brand, 
 information sharing etc. 
 

8 Governance and Performance 
 

Strengths 
 

8.1 The LSP has established a comprehensive performance 

 management system to connect strategic objectives and high level 
 priorities to  specific action plans and targets,  although it is very new 

 and is yet to be fully tested. 
 
8.2 The council’s Performance Plus information system is to be used to 

administer the performance management framework and all partners 
will be encouraged to input their performance management 

information into the system to enable monitoring across the 
partnership. 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 51



ChPartnershipApp0.docclient version 12 

8.3 Performance monitoring reports are presented to the LSP Executive 
and the LSP Board at each meeting. 

 
8.4 The targets in the new SCS have been radically pruned from those in 

the previous strategy.  As well as being far fewer in number they are 
also focused on the outcomes of partnership activity rather than also 
including what partners are committed to work on individually. They 

are directly related to achievement of the 6 cross-cutting projects 
over-seen by the theme sub-groups. It is intended that the new LAA 

targets should also be aligned to the performance management 
framework and delivery of the SCS. 

 

8.5 The council’s impressive Mosaic customer profiling technology and GIS 
mapping software enables in depth analysis at neighbourhood level 

and in future partners will be able to use this information to plan 
partnership activity. 

 

8.6 There is a clear meeting structure. The Executive meets every 6 
weeks.  Its members include the most senior representatives of the 

partner organisations, the chairs of the 6 sub-groups and the Chair of 
the Board.  In total this is estimated to be 17 people.  The Board 

meets  quarterly and has a membership of 40 – 10 from each of the 
three sectors – public, voluntary and private – plus 10 elected 
councillors – 6 representing the borough council and 4 from the county 

council.  The sub-groups meet according to their individual work 
programmes. 

 
8.7 The LSP is open to learning as demonstrated by its invitation to the 

peer challenge team to visit. 
 

Areas for Development 

8.8 Whilst the structure of meetings is clear some partners were unsure 
 about the distinctive roles of the different fora- Executive, Board and 

 sub-groups - with the relationship between the Executive and the 
 Board being a particular cause of confusion.  A key issue is to 

 establish where accountability lies and how accountabilities inter-
 relate.  Some see the Board as having primacy and others the 

 Executive.  Role descriptions for members of the different fora would 
 help to clarify this. There is also a need to distinguish the  performance 
 management responsibilities of  Executive, Board and sub-groups.  

 Some members of the Executive were not sure why they were present.  
 They do not feel that the Executive is taking a sufficiently strategic 

 approach.  The role of the Executive should be to drive, support, 
 resource and performance manage the major priorities of the 
 partnership and it should not get too involved in the detail of projects 

 which are within the remit of the sub-groups. 
 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 52



ChPartnershipApp0.docclient version 13 

8.9 How agendas are arrived at is also unclear to some.  The view was 
 expressed that the Board meetings are long, that the agendas are 

 managed by the council and items requested by others and seen as 
 more important are crowded out. Sometimes unnecessary sparring by 

 councillors on matters of party politics or borough /county politics 
 is also seen to take up too much time (although others expressed the 
 view that there had been some improvement here).  
 
8.10 There was a suggestion that Executive meetings while “business-
 like” do not encourage contributions from and dialogue between 

 partners.  Poor or irregular attendance at Executive meetings by some 
 partners or  the regular attendance of substitutes should be viewed 
 as a cause for concern and the reasons investigated. 

 
8.11 Several issues were raised on the role of the sub-groups.  The 

 development and management of the projects is an important focus 
 but there is a strong view that should not be to the exclusion of a 
 more strategic focus.  The Health group has tried to take a more 

 strategic view and has therefore been slower to develop a specific 
 project.  This is a cause for concern by some others.  There is an issue 

 about whether sub-groups should have devolved responsibility for 
 deciding on, or at least be consulted about matters which pertain to 

 their area e.g. there was a question about whether the £18,000 
 funding coming from the county council to spend in the area of climate 
 change would be referred to the Environmental sub-group.  Finally on 

 this point there were a number of concerns expressed about the 
 viability of the Children and Young People’s sub-group becoming the 

 Children’s Trust from January and whether there had been adequate 
 discussion about this with all partners.   
 
8.12 There is a desire on the part of some council members who are not 

 currently involved in the LSP to have a role.  This should be resisted in 
 terms of inclusion in the Executive or Board but welcomed more 

 generally.   However, there is a need to communicate more 
 effectively with all  councillors about the role and activities of the LSP 
 so that they can become advocates for it and also use it as a means 

 through which to engage more directly with partners at ward and 
 neighbourhood levels.  
  
8.13 Overview and Scrutiny does not yet have a specific role in relation to 
 the LSP and  this should be developed.  However it should not be 
 simply to add a further layer of performance monitoring and must 

 be more focused e.g. to have a role in developing any improvement 
 arrangements which result from this report or to review and 

 produce proposals for specific areas of the LSP which need to be 
 developed.  Areas that would be very pertinent to the role of 
 councillors include: how the LSP undertakes community engagement 

 and how effectively the council is using its influence with the LSP.  

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 53



ChPartnershipApp0.docclient version 14 

 
8.14 The performance management framework is very new and over time 
 will need to be further developed to ensure that the priorities and 

 targets for the SCS, LAA, Ambition Lancashire and individual partner 
 organisations are  fully aligned and that performance indicators are 

 consistent.  Partners seem to welcome the opportunity to contribute to 
 the framework but  some are unsure, as yet, about how to do this. 

 

 

9 Recommendations 
 
The LSP should: 
 

9.1 Prepare and implement an Improvement Plan following consideration 
of this report. 

 
9.2 Avoid letting the strong urge to act and continually drive forward 

crowd out opportunities to discuss and reflect. 

 
9.3 Look at other areas where the LSP could start to add value e.g. 

through: 
 

o Lobbying on behalf of the Borough (e.g. to government) 

o Promoting the Borough’s successes beyond the immediate 
area 

o Celebrating successes of partners, individually as well as 
collectively 

 

9.4 Try to define and promote the added value the partnership brings.  
Answer the questions “are we collectively making a difference?” and 

“how do we know?” 
 
 

 

 

Patricia Coleman 

On behalf of the team 

November 2007 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 54



 

 

 

 
 

Updated Template July 2007  

 

 
Report of Meeting Date 

Corporate Director (Business) 
(Introduced by the Executive 

Member for Economic 
Development and Regeneration) 

Executive Cabinet 
6th December 

2007 

 

 

HOUSING & PLANNING DELIVERY GRANT - CONSULTATION 

ON ALLOCATION MECHANISM 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1. To inform members of the publication of a Government consultation document relating to 
the allocation mechanism for the Housing and Planning Delivery Grant (HPDG) and to 
agree a response to it. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

2. To note the report and to forward the attached responses to the Department of 
Communities and Local Government. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT 

3. The consultation paper proposes that the allocation mechanism for HPDG will consist of 
two elements, one relating to plan making and the other to housing delivery. There will be 
no grant for development control performance, but poor development control performance 
will be punished by a reduction in the grant for plan making. The plan making element will 
require Councils to identify a five and fifteen year supply of housing land and to deliver 
sound Development Plan Documents (DPDs). The Council is already able to identify a 
five year supply of housing on existing sites with planning permission in the Borough, but 
more work will be required to identify a fifteen year supply. It is also proposed to reward 
authorities for joint working on DPDs and Strategic Housing Market Assessments, which 
is good news for the authority, as we are undertaking joint work with South Ribble and 
Preston Councils on a Core Strategy and also about to embark on a Strategic Housing 
Market Assessment.  

 
4. The housing delivery element of the grant aims to reward authorities that deliver housing 

annually at a level of at least 0.75% of existing housing stock, in order to meet the 
Government’s national target for more housing to be built. At current housing stock levels 
this would equate to grant being awarded in Chorley if more than 336 homes were 
completed per year. This is fewer homes than the housing target for the Borough as set 
out in the draft Regional Spatial Strategy Panel Report and appears a realistic aim for the 
Borough.   

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 

 

5. To ensure that the opportunity is taken to express the Council’s views to the Government 
about the proposed allocation mechanism for the HPDG. 

 

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 55



 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

 

6. None 

 

 
CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
 
7. This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives: 
 

Put Chorley at the heart of regional 
economic development in the 
central Lancashire sub region 

 Develop local solutions to climate 
change 

 

Improving equality of opportunity 
and life chance 

 Develop the character and feel of 
Chorley as a good place to live 

√ 

Involving People in their 
Communities 

 Ensure Chorley is a performing 
Organisation 

√ 

 
BACKGROUND 

8. The HPDG derives from claims from local authorities that housing growth was 
inadequately recognised by the local government finance system. The Kate Barker review 
recommended an incentive scheme to raise housing delivery, which the Government 
accepted. It is hoped that HPDG will incentivise local government to grow their tax base 
and also to enable communities that are experiencing housing growth to receive some 
reward for accepting new housing in their area. The recent Government Green Paper, 
“Homes for the future” sets out a range of measures by which the Government will work 
with partners and communities to deliver more and better homes. HPDG is part of this 
broader agenda.  

 
9. HPDG builds on the existing Planning Delivery Grant. Planning Delivery Grant was 

designed to incentivise improved performance in development control, with smaller 
incentives for plan-making and for housing delivery in South East England. Some funding 
was also allocated for planning support and advisory bodies. The Government have 
decided that in future there will no longer be an award for performance on development 
control. Instead funding for development control will be supported by increases in 
planning fees, with separate arrangements for planning support and advisory bodies. 
HPDG funding will go exclusively to local authorities and will focus on plan making and 
housing delivery. HPDG will be unringfenced and used according to local priorities. 

 
10. This consultation follows a previous consultation on the HPDG in 2006. 
 
KEY PROPOSALS 
 
11. The proposed allocation mechanism for HPDG consists of two elements, one relating to 

plan making and the other to housing delivery.  
  
 The Plan Making Element 
12. All planning authorities will be eligible for the planning element (£194 million nationally 

over the three years to 2011). It will be split across 3 components: 
 

• Assessment and delivery of land for housing over 5 and 15 year timescales; 

• Delivery of “sound” Core Strategy Development Plan Documents (DPDs) and other DPDs 
that allocate sites for more than 2000 dwellings; and 

• Delivery of “sound” DPDs and Strategic Housing Market Assessments through joint 
working. 

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 56



 

13. The plan making element of the grant will be awarded to local planning authorities (LPAs) 
based on work undertaken during the previous financial year. Therefore, for the financial 
year 2008 – 2009 authorities will be rewarded for work undertaken for the period 1

st
 April 

2007 – 31
st
 March 2008. 

 
14. It is proposed that the assessment and identification of land for housing over 5 and 15 

year timescales will comprise 40% of the plan making element. LPAs will be rewarded for 
maintaining a five year supply of deliverable (suitable, available and achievable) sites for 
housing. It will be assessed in either a five year land availability assessment or contained 
within a Strategic Housing Land Assessment or Annual Monitoring Report. Where LPAs 
have also identified a fifteen year supply of land for housing which is deliverable, 
developable and/or in broad locations the grant will be rewarded at an enhanced level. 
This will be assessed through evidence provided in Strategic Housing Land Assessments. 
If LPAs have not identified a 15 year supply of housing land by the end of March 2010, 
they will not be eligible for this grant element. 

 

15. 50% of the plan making element will be based on the delivery of Core Strategies and 
other DPDs which allocate land for more than 2,000 dwellings. LPAs wil be able to claim 
for each of the eligible DPDs that commenced during the relevant year, which are 
delivered in accordance with the Submission and Adoption milestones set out in the Local 
Development Scheme – the annually updated 3 year programme for LDF document 
production. A reduced percentage of grant will be allocated when DPDs are not delivered 
in accordance with the milestones in the Local Development Scheme. 

 
16. It is proposed to reward LPAs that are working jointly on any DPDs and it is also 

proposed to incentivise local authorities to work together to jointly publish Strategic 
Housing Market Assessments by March 2009. These must be prepared through Housing 
Market Partnerships and must provide evidence of need and demand across the sub-
region. 

 
17. If development control performance falls below any national planning standard the 

Government propose to include a mechanism to abate HPDG from the planning element 
for plan making. The aim of this is to ensure that LPAs are rewarded when they deliver 
across the whole of their service and not just those elements that are relevant to HPDG 
grant allocation. For 2007/08 it is proposed that the abatement will be triggered where the 
local authority fails to deliver 60% of major planning applications within 13 weeks and 
65% of minor and 80% of other planning applications within 8 weeks. In Chorley 
performance from April to October 07 was 88.9% for major applications, 73% for minor 
applications and 87.8% for other planning applications. 

 
 The Housing Element 
 
18. The Government want more housing to be built in order to meet the national target of 

240,000 homes per year by 2016 and improve long-term affordability. They are proposing 
that all local authorities delivering housing at a level of at least 0.75% of existing stock will 
be eligible for the housing element of the grant, which will be £316 million nationally over 
the three year period. Once eligible, allocation will be based on one unit of grant for each 
net additional dwelling beyond the 0.75% point. An average of the last three years’ 
delivery figures will be used to avoid annual peaks and troughs.  

 
19. The Government has decided against rewarding local authorities for housing delivery 

against existing targets in current plans, as some LPAs are revising targets via the 
Regional Spatial Strategy process and some targets are out-of-date. However, once 
targets are have been updated the Government plan to review the operation of the 
system to ensure that the HPDG accords with the planning framework. The consultation 

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 57



paper states that the Government will seek to ensure that HPDG does not support 
inappropriate housing growth, via checks in the planning system. 

 
Additional Issues 
 
20. The Government also considers that the HPDG might provide an opportunity to improve 

the design quality of new housing development. They suggest an assessment of the 
quality of built schemes could take place or that the steps that LPAs have taken to 
improve skills and knowledge in this area could be rewarded. 

 
21. The Government are also seeking views as to whether there is any support for 

incentivising the delivery of family homes, by allocating a higher proportion of grant for 
these forms of housing rather than flats. They also wish to explore how HPDG might be 
used to incentivise local authority performance in the reduction in the number of empty 
homes. Another suggestion is to include registration of local surplus public sector land as 
an eligibility criterion for HPDG to encourage the use of such land for housing purposes. 

 
IMPACTS FOR CHORLEY 
 
22. The Council is already able to identify a five year supply of housing on existing sites with 

planning permission in the Borough and there is further potential for housing at Buckshaw 
Village, so it is not envisaged that identifying a five year rolling supply of sites will be 
problematic in the near future. However, much work will be needed to identify a fifteen 
year supply of housing land, but this work is planned through future work on a Strategic 
Housing Land Assessment and work on the Core Strategy and Site Allocations 
Development Plan Documents. The Council is currently making progress on the 
preparation of a Core Strategy, which is due to be submitted to the Secretary of State in 
September 2009 and adopted in December 2010. 

 
23. The Council is undertaking joint work on the Core Strategy with Preston and South Ribble 

Councils and a Strategic Housing Market Partnership to work on a Strategic Housing 
Market Assessment is currently being set up to cover the three Central Lancashire 
Districts, so grant in these areas is welcome.    

 

24. As at April 2007 the housing stock level in Chorley was 44,832. Therefore, if these 
proposals are implemented, at current stock levels grant would be triggered if more than 
336 houses were delivered per year, which is a figure that is below the housing 
requirement (417 dwellings per year) that is set out in the draft Regional Spatial Strategy 
for the North West Panel Report. The HPDG consultation paper gives an illustrative figure 
of £1600 for each additional unit above the 0.75% delivery floor. Therefore, it should be 
possible for Chorley to earn grant for the housing element of the proposed HPDG. It 
should be noted however, that housing completion data is often affected by factors 
outside of local authority control. Even when a site is deliverable, housebuilders decide 
when it will be developed and the speed of that development.  

 

25. HPDG will not be ringfenced so will be able to be used for Chorley Borough priorities.  

 
26. LPAs have been asked specific questions in the consultation paper. Responses to these 

questions are included in Appendix 1.  

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 58



IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT 

 
27. This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Corporate Directors’ 

comments are included: 
 

Finance √ Customer Services   

Human Resources  Equality and Diversity  
Legal  No significant implications in this 

area 
 

 
 

COMMENTS OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE (BUSINESS TRANSFORMATION) 
 
28. The report outlines the fact that this is potentially a new income stream for the Council 

and this will replace the planning delivery grant income that the Council has previously 
received. 

 
 The exact level of grant is unknown for 2008/09 and is dependant upon the final allocation 

scheme that is agreed.  However, I have for budget planning purposes had to assume a 
level of grant and have included in the draft budget for 2008/09 a sum of £75k. 

 
 Based upon the level of grant received previously, the allocation methods proposed and 

our current performance, I believe this assumption to be reasonable.  However, the final 
outcome will only be known later in the year once the allocation method is finalised and 
the grant figure confirmed. 

 

JANE E MEEK 
CORPORATE DIRECTOR (BUSINESS) 

 

Background Papers 

Document Date File Place of Inspection 

Housing & Planning Delivery 
Grant (HPDG) Consultation on 

Allocation Mechanism 
October 2007  

Civic Offices Union 
Street 

Housing & Planning Delivery 
Grant (HPDG) Consultation 

Paper 
July 2006  

Civic Offices Union 
Street 

 

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID 

Stephen Lamb 5282 09/11/07 HPDG Cabinet Report 07 

 

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 59



HOUSING AND PLANNING DELIVERY GRANT     APPENDIX 1 
 
C0NSULTATION QUESTIONS 

1. Do you agree with the principle of rewarding a 5 year supply of deliverable sites 
for housing? 

Yes. 

 
2. Do you agree with the principle of enhanced grant for demonstrating a 5 year 

supply of deliverable sites for housing where the authority has also identified 
15 years of deliverable, developable and/or broad locations of housing sites? 

Yes. 

 

3. Do you agree with the principle of rewarding local planning authorities for the 
delivery of priority Development Plan Documents? 

The delivery of priority Development Plan Documents is vital and should be rewarded, 
however, some flexibility is required. See below.   

 

4. Do you agree with reductions in the grant payable where delays occur to the 
delivery of milestones for submission and adoption? 

No, the lack of clear consistent guidance on the production of DPDs is currently 
making it difficult for many authorities to meet milestones, which would then be 
penalised by reductions in grant. Some flexibility is required. 

 

5. Do you agree with the principle of joint working among local planning 
authorities? 

Yes. 

 

6. Do you agree with the overall weighting of the planning element of HPDG, ie. 
40% for the assessment and identification of land for housing over a 5 and 15 
year timescale, 50% for the delivery of development plan documents and 10% 
for joint working? 

Yes. 

 

7. Do you agree with the principle of abatement where performance on 
development control declines below national planning standards? 

Only if performance is significantly below national standards. It is unclear what the 
situation would be for authorities that receive no grant and have poor development 
control performance. Would money be taken away from such authorities? 

 

8. Do you agree with our proposed criteria for the housing element? 

Once Regional Spatial Strategies are finalised these should form the basis for 
housing delivery targets. It should be noted however, that housing completion data is 
often affected by factors outside of local authority control. Even when a site is 
deliverable housebuilders decide when it will be developed and the speed of that 
development. 

 

9. In principle, do you think Housing and Planning Delivery Grant should be used 
to support improvements in design quality? 

Whilst improvements in design quality are necessary, it is difficult to see how this 
would work effectively in practice. Who would assess the design quality of schemes? 

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 60



When would they be assessed? How would improvements to skills and knowledge be 
assessed? 

 

10. Do you have any views on how the process could work in practice? 

See above. 

 

11. Do you have any views as to whether Housing and Planning Delivery Grant 
should be incentivising delivery of family homes? 

Providing a Strategic Housing Market Assessment indicates a shortage of family 
homes in an area, incentivising the delivery of family homes would be acceptable.  

 

12. Do you agree that an added eligibility criterion on empty homes would be useful 
and effective? 

Whilst bringing empty homes into re-use is desirable, it may prove very difficult to 
monitor it accurately in practice.  

 

13. Are there other ways we might incentivise the bringing back into use of empty 
homes through HPDG? 

No comments. 

 

14. Do you agree that including registration of local surplus public sector land as 
an eligibility criterion would be a useful and effective incentive? 

This is likely to prove an incentive for those authorities with surplus public sector land. 

Agenda Item 9Agenda Page 61



Agenda Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
 

Updated Template September 2007  

 

 
Report of Meeting Date 

Corporate Director (Business)  

(Introduced by the Executive 
Member for Economic 

Development and Regeneration) 

Executive Cabinet 6 December 2007 

 

GROWTH POINT EXPRESSION OF INTEREST BID 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1. To outline the main features of the bid. 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S) 

2. That the approval of the Executive Cabinet be sought to the pursuance of an Expression 
of Interest Bid for Growth Point designation of the Central Lancashire and Blackpool 
areas.  

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT 

3. Councils in the North of England have been invited by the Government to apply to become 
Growth Points.  A Growth Point designation would mean accelerated housing growth over 
requirements as set out in the Regional Spatial Strategy (RSS).  In return for faster housing 
growth additional funding for the provision of infrastructure may be available and increased 
opportunities to secure affordable housing.  English Partnerships would be the main 
delivery vehicle to provide advance infrastructure.  Central Lancashire – South Ribble, 
Preston and Chorley – appears to fit the Government’s criteria for a successful bid.  
However it became apparent that Blackpool was also likely to bid.  On advice from 
Government Office a single joint bid for Blackpool and Central Lancashire has been 
submitted.  Consultants were appointed to prepare an Expression of Interest bid, with costs 
shared equally between Central Lancashire Councils and Blackpool. 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 

(If the recommendations are accepted) 

4. Growth Point designation is expected to provide greater opportunities for more affordable 
housing and associated infrastructure. 

 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

5. None. 
 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
 
6. This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives: 
 

Put Chorley at the heart of regional 
economic development in the 
central Lancashire sub region 

X Develop local solutions to Climate 
Change 

 

Improving equality of opportunity 
and life chances 

X Develop the character and feel of 
Chorley as a good place to live 

X 

 

Agenda Item 10Agenda Page 63



Involving People in their 
Communities 

 Ensure Chorley is a performing 
Organisation 

 

 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
7. The Department of Communities and Local Government (DCLG) has invited bids from 

councils who wish to be designated as Growth Points or Eco Towns. 

 
8. The concept behind the DCLG initiative is to increase housing supply, and in particular 

affordable housing, as quickly as possible.  The first phase has involved the south of 
England and the Midlands and the Government is rolling this out to the North of England.  
It appears that in return for increasing the rate of housing development that some monies 
will be made available to provide for the necessary infrastructure.  The housing 
development must be sustainable not only in terms of general location and environmental 
issues but must also be aligned with strong forecast economic growth. 

 
9. The joint LDF work to date and the earlier sub-regional economic and planning work 

carried out by GVA Grimley suggests that a sound basis exists to demonstrate that 
Central Lancashire – South Ribble, Preston and Chorley – can meet these sustainability 
criteria. 

  
10. This matter was discussed at the Joint LDF Working Group on 27 September 2007 in the 

context of the LDF Core Strategy work.  At this stage there is no commitment required as 
it is only an expression of interest.  If there is no commensurate delivery of infrastructure 
the councils could withdraw from the “bid”.  To submit a bid it has been necessary to 
obtain consultancy support (from GVA Grimley) and the 3 councils have agreed to share 
the costs of this from their respective LDF funds.  The work involved will be of 
considerable value in the LDF process irrespective of whether the bid is successful. 

 

11. The deadline for submitting an Expression of Interest was 31st October, with a decision on 
successful bids being made in February. 

 
12. In preparing the bid a meeting was held with officers of the 3 Councils and the County 

Council, GONW and English Partnerships as well as Blackpool.  This meeting explored 
the intentions of Central Lancashire and Blackpool to potentially submit rival bids for 
Growth Point status.  On advice from GONW it was apparent a successful bid was more 
likely if Blackpool and Central Lancashire Councils worked together and submitted a joint 
bid.  On this basis, a joint Central Lancashire and Blackpool submission was prepared. 

 
13. In addition further information was provided by English Partnerships that a potential 

delivery mechanism is for funding to be made available for infrastructure through a 
Community Investment Fund.  The concept is for an initial amount of capital to be 
transferred into the fund to provide necessary infrastructure with monies then recovered 
from developers (a so called ‘roof tax’) and this receipt to then be returned to the fund for 
further infrastructure projects, and thus the fund would be sustained. 

 
DETAILS OF THE BID 
 
14. The key features of the bid are:- 

 
- At least 4,000 affordable homes to be provided across the combined area by 2016. 
 
- A total of 20,000 new homes across Central Lancashire and Blackpool over the next 

9 years.  
 

Agenda Item 10Agenda Page 64



- A £10,000 per unit ‘roof tax’ tariff that would raise £130million for infrastructure 
investment.  

 
- It is not just housing growth that is envisaged but also for this to provide the impetus 

for bringing forward major employment sites for local jobs.  

 
15. No firm commitments have been given to particular sites for development but in Chorley 

the bid envisages the remaining land at Buckshaw Village to be a key component. 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT 
 
16. This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Corporate Directors’ 

comments are included: 

  
Finance  Customer Services  
Human Resources  Equality and Diversity  
Legal  No significant implications in this area X 

 

 
JANE MEEK 
(CORPORATE DIRECTOR (BUSINESS)) 

 
 

Background Papers 

Document Date File Place of Inspection 

Background Reports 
Central Lancashire, Blackpool 
Growth Point Bid document 

and appendices 

October 2007  
Members Room 

Town Hall 

 

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID 

Julian Jackson 5280 20 November 2007  

 

 

 

Agenda Item 10Agenda Page 65



Agenda Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
 

Updated Template July 2007  

 

 
Report of Meeting Date 

Assistant Chief Executive 
(Business Transformation) 

(Introduced by the Executive 
Member for Resources, 
Councillor A Cullens) 

Executive Cabinet 
6th December 

2007 

 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING 2007/08 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1. To update Members on the progress of the 2007/08 Capital Programme, and to seek 
Member support and approval for a number of recommendations from the Strategy Group. 

RECOMMENDATION(S) 

2.        That the Council accepts an additional grant award of £373,000 from the Heritage Lottery 
Fund towards the cost of the Astley Park capital project and contributes £106,000 towards 
the cost of the grant-eligible expenditure and £17,000 for additional design fees not 
eligible for grant. 

 
3. That the revised capital programme for 2007/08 in the sum of £10,175,240 be approved 

and that slippage of £1,176,650 expenditure to 2008/09 onwards be noted. 

 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT 

4. This report seeks approval to requested amendments and additions to the 2007/08 Capital 
Programme following a recent monitoring exercise and Strategy Group meeting. In 
particular, it is proposed that the overall budget of the Astley Park project is increased in 
order to ensure the successful completion of the scheme according to the timetable agreed 
with the Heritage Lottery Fund. Following a “value engineering” exercise and the redesign 
of certain aspects of the project, the HLF has offered additional grant funding, but match 
funding is also required from the Council. The delay to the building works phase of the 
project means that there is significant slippage of expenditure to next year, but the project is 
still expected to be completed on time. 

 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 

(If the recommendations are accepted) 

5. To ensure that the Capital Programme reflects and is capable of assisting the delivery of 
the Council’s corporate priorities. 

 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

6. None. 
 

 
 
CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

 

Agenda Item 11Agenda Page 67



 
7. This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives: 
 

Put Chorley at the heart of regional 
economic development in the 
central Lancashire sub region 

a Improved access to public services a 

Improving equality of opportunity 
and life chance 

a Develop the character and feel of 
Chorley as a good place to live 

a 

Involving People in their 
Communities 

a Ensure Chorley is a performing 
Organisation 

a 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
8. On 4th October 2007 Executive Cabinet approved the 2007/08 capital budget of 

£8,798,310. The programme is now forecast to be £10,175,240 and significant reasons 
for this increase are given below. A detailed analysis of the programme showing the 
changes, including slippage to next year, is shown at Appendix A. 

 

HOW ARE WE PERFORMING? 
 
 (A) Key Performance Indicators 
 
9. High level monitoring of the capital programme is carried out through 3 performance 

indicators, which have been described in previous Executive Cabinet reports. Table 1 lists 
these and shows targets and current performance. 

 

Performance Indicator Target  
2007/08 

Performance 
Nov 2007 

 
1. The % of the capital programme budget actually spent 
 
2. The % of projects using the toolkit 
 
3. The % of capital schemes intended to be completed during the 
 year actually completed  
 

% 
90 
 

70 
 

85 

% 
23 
 

76 
 

29 

Table 1 – Capital Programme 2007/08 – Key Performance Indicators 
 
 
 

10. The percentage of the budget actually spent is lower than forecast for the time of year, 
however there are significant commitments in the financial system, which are likely to be 
met by the time of the next monitoring report. 

 
11. The percentage of projects using the toolkit exceeds the target, is very encouraging and is 

likely to increase as the year progresses and more staff are trained in project 
management skills. 

 
12. Although the percentage of capital schemes actually completed is quite low, this reflects 

the fact that many of the schemes e.g. disabled facilities grants payment cannot be shown 
as completed until year-end. 

 
 
 

 
 

  (B) Capital Monitoring 2007/08 
 

Agenda Item 11Agenda Page 68



13.  

Executive Cabinet 
Date 

Details £ Note 

4/10/07 Approved Capital Programme 
Less 
Slippage 
Plus 
Other Changes 
Total 

8,798,310 
 

(1,176,650) 
 

2,553,580 
10,175,240 

 

 
 
 A 
 
 B 

 
Note A: Appendix A shows the full capital programme and identifies slippage to 2008/09 

and other changes. 
 
Note B: Appendix B is a scheme-by-scheme analysis of the other changes with brief 

explanations of the changes. The offer letter from the Heritage Lottery Fund is 
presented as Appendix C. 

 

(C) Capital Receipts Monitoring 2007/08 

 

14. There are limited large disposals expected during 2007/08. The former King Street 
premises have been sold and the sale of housing development land at Eaves Green is 
imminent. In respect of the latter, a third of the sum is required to pay the ransom value due 
to English Partnerships, and the balance will be paid to Lancashire County Council as a 
further contribution towards the cost of the Eaves Green Link Road. 

 
Based on the level of sales to date, a sum of £1m has been included as the estimated 
share receivable by the Council from Chorley Community Housing in respect of Preserved 
Right To Buy sales of dwellings to our former tenants. 

 
In addition, the Council has agreed to transfer land at Gillibrand Fields and Fairview Farm, 
Adlington to housing associations in return for nomination rights to properties to be built 
there, rather than cash, in order to promote affordable housing in the Borough. 

 

IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT 
 
15. This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments 

are included: 
 

Finance a Customer Services   
Human Resources  Equality and Diversity  
Legal  Streetscene, Neighbourhoods and 

Environment. 
 

 

16. The financial implications of the report are covered in the body of the report. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
GARY HALL 
ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE (BUSINESS TRANSFORMATION AND IMPROVEMENT) 
 

Agenda Item 11Agenda Page 69



 
 

 

 

There are no background papers to this report. 

    

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID 

Barbara Charnock/Michael L. 
Jackson 

5457/5490 16 Nov 07 
CapitalProgrammeMonitoringReport

Dec 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 11Agenda Page 70



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 A

C
a
p

it
a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
2

0
0

7
/0

8
2

0
0

7
/0

8

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

E
s

ti
m

a
te

S
li
p

p
a

g
e

 t
o

 

2
0

0
8

/0
9

O
th

e
r 

C
h

a
n

g
e

s

R
e

v
is

e
d

 

E
s

ti
m

a
te

E
x

te
rn

a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

C
B

C
 

F
u

n
d

in
g

S
c

h
e

m
e

£
£

£
£

£
£

A
s

s
is

ta
n

t 
C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 (
P

o
li
c

y
 &

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
)

P
ro

je
c
t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 C

a
p

it
a

lis
a

ti
o

n
4

0
,0

0
0

4
0

,0
0

0
4

0
,0

0
0

W
e

b
s
it
e

 R
e

fr
e

s
h

1
4

,8
4

0
1

4
,8

4
0

1
4

,8
4

0

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t
o

 P
it
c
h

 D
ra

in
a

g
e

 B
is

h
o

p
 R

a
w

s
th

o
rn

e
 S

c
h

o
o

l
1

9
,9

9
0

1
9

,9
9

0
1

9
,9

9
0

0

E
x
te

rn
a

l 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 P

o
t

9
,6

5
0

9
,6

5
0

9
,6

5
0

- 
C

h
a

rn
o

c
k
 R

ic
h

a
rd

 F
C

6
,0

0
0

6
,0

0
0

6
,0

0
0

P
u

m
p

 p
ri

m
in

g
 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
P

u
b

lic
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 B

o
a

rd
4

0
,0

0
0

4
0

,0
0

0
4

0
,0

0
0

0

A
s

s
is

ta
n

t 
C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 (
P

o
li
c

y
 &

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
) 

T
o

ta
l

1
3

0
,4

8
0

0
0

1
3

0
,4

8
0

5
9

,9
9

0
7

0
,4

9
0

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c

e

P
u

m
p

 P
ri

m
in

g
 t
h

e
 A

re
a

 F
o

ru
m

5
0

,0
0

0
5

0
,0

0
0

5
0

,0
0

0
0

L
e

g
a

l 
C

a
s
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
S

y
s
te

m
3

1
,7

5
0

(3
1

,7
5

0
)

0
0

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 T

o
ta

l
8

1
,7

5
0

(3
1

,7
5

0
)

0
5

0
,0

0
0

5
0

,0
0

0
0

A
s

s
is

ta
n

t 
C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 (
B

u
s

in
e

s
s

 T
ra

n
s

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t)

C
a

p
it
a

lis
e

d
 R

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n

g
 C

o
s
ts

6
6

7
,0

0
0

6
6

7
,0

0
0

6
6

7
,0

0
0

P
la

n
n

e
d

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 o
f 
F

ix
e

d
 A

s
s
e

ts
2

0
0

,0
0

0
2

0
0

,0
0

0
2

0
0

,0
0

0
T

o
w

n
 H

a
ll 

D
is

a
b

le
d

 A
c
c
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 R
e

fu
rb

is
h

m
e

n
t

0
1

1
,3

0
0

1
1

,3
0

0
1

1
,3

0
0

G
ill

ib
ra

n
d

 L
in

k
 R

o
a

d
 -

 l
a

n
d

 a
s
s
e

m
b

ly
0

7
3

1
,0

0
0

7
3

1
,0

0
0

7
3

1
,0

0
0

A
s

s
is

ta
n

t 
C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 (
B

u
s

in
e

s
s

 T
ra

n
s

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t)

 T
o

ta
l

8
6

7
,0

0
0

0
7

4
2

,3
0

0
1

,6
0

9
,3

0
0

0
1

,6
0

9
,3

0
0

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

H
u

m
a

n
 R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s

e
-E

n
a

b
lin

g
 H

R
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 -

 T
ra

in
in

g
3

0
,0

0
0

3
0

,0
0

0
3

0
,0

0
0

H
R

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
S

y
s
te

m
6

8
,5

0
0

6
8

,5
0

0
6

8
,5

0
0

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

H
u

m
a

n
 R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 T

o
ta

l
9

8
,5

0
0

0
0

9
8

,5
0

0
0

9
8

,5
0

0

Agenda Item 11Agenda Page 71



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 A

C
a
p

it
a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
2

0
0

7
/0

8
2

0
0

7
/0

8

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

E
s

ti
m

a
te

S
li
p

p
a

g
e

 t
o

 

2
0

0
8

/0
9

O
th

e
r 

C
h

a
n

g
e

s

R
e

v
is

e
d

 

E
s

ti
m

a
te

E
x

te
rn

a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

C
B

C
 

F
u

n
d

in
g

S
c

h
e

m
e

£
£

£
£

£
£

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

IC
T

W
e

b
s
it
e

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
(i

n
c
l.
 I
C

T
 s

a
la

ry
 c

a
p

it
a

lis
a

ti
o

n
)

3
0

,0
0

0
3

0
,0

0
0

3
0

,0
0

0

T
h

in
 C

lie
n

t 
P

ilo
t/
F

u
ll 

In
te

g
ra

ti
o

n
2

5
1

,1
5

0
2

5
1

,1
5

0
2

5
1

,1
5

0

T
e

le
p

h
o

n
y

1
3

7
,0

0
0

1
3

7
,0

0
0

1
3

7
,0

0
0

D
a

ta
 S

to
ra

g
e

 S
o

lu
ti
o

n
6

7
,3

5
0

6
7

,3
5

0
6

7
,3

5
0

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

IC
T

 T
o

ta
l

4
8

5
,5

0
0

0
0

4
8

5
,5

0
0

0
4

8
5

,5
0

0

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir

e
c

to
r 

(B
u

s
in

e
s

s
)

D
is

a
b

le
d

 F
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 G

ra
n

ts
3

5
5

,0
0

0
3

5
5

,0
0

0
2

3
5

,0
0

0
1

2
0

,0
0

0

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
n

e
w

a
l

0
0

0

- 
H

o
m

e
 R

e
p

a
ir

 G
ra

n
ts

1
0

5
,0

0
0

1
0

5
,0

0
0

1
0

5
,0

0
0

- 
E

n
e

rg
y
 G

ra
n

ts
1

0
1

,8
8

0
1

0
1

,8
8

0
1

0
1

,8
8

0

- 
H

a
n

d
y
p

e
rs

o
n

 S
c
h

e
m

e
1

0
,0

0
0

1
0

,0
0

0
1

0
,0

0
0

R
e

fu
rb

is
h

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
C

o
ts

w
o

ld
 H

o
u

s
e

 H
o

m
e

le
s
s
 U

n
it

4
0

,0
0

0
4

0
,0

0
0

4
0

,0
0

0
0

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 P

ro
je

c
ts

 -
 D

e
s
ig

n
 F

e
e

s
1

0
3

,2
2

0
1

0
3

,2
2

0
1

0
3

,2
2

0

C
h

o
rl

e
y
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 R

e
g

io
n

a
l 
S

it
e

5
7

6
,5

3
0

5
7

6
,5

3
0

5
7

6
,5

3
0

T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
 P

a
v
in

g
 P

ro
je

c
t

3
3

,0
8

0
3

3
,0

8
0

3
3

,0
8

0
0

e
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 B
u

ild
in

g
 C

o
n

tr
o

l 
P

ro
je

c
t

3
2

,4
9

0
3

2
,4

9
0

3
2

,4
9

0

G
ro

u
n

d
w

o
rk

 P
ro

je
c
ts

1
4

,0
5

0
1

5
,0

0
0

2
9

,0
5

0
2

9
,0

5
0

A
d

lin
g

to
n

 R
a

il 
S

ta
ti
o

n
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 (
S

1
0

6
 f
u

n
d

e
d

)
7

,5
0

0
7

,5
0

0
7

,5
0

0
0

C
o

m
m

o
n

 B
a

n
k
 -

 B
ig

 W
o

o
d

 R
e

s
e

rv
o

ir
3

3
0

,0
0

0
3

3
0

,0
0

0
3

3
0

,0
0

0
0

P
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 
A

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 H
o

u
s
in

g
7

9
,7

2
0

(6
1

,0
6

0
)

1
8

,6
6

0
1

8
,6

6
0

R
e

g
io

n
a

l 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 P

o
t 
C

a
p

it
a

l 
G

ra
n

t 
fu

n
d

e
d

 s
c
h

e
m

e
s

6
9

3
,0

0
0

(5
9

7
,7

8
0

)
9

5
,2

2
0

9
5

,2
2

0
0

A
ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 H

a
lli

w
e

ll 
S

tr
e

e
t 
P

ro
je

c
t 
2

0
0

7
-2

0
1

0
7

9
,0

0
0

7
9

,0
0

0
7

9
,0

0
0

0

H
o

m
e

le
s
s
 p

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 C

e
n

tr
a

l 
L

a
n

c
s
 S

a
n

c
tu

a
ry

 S
c
h

e
m

e
 P

ro
je

c
t

2
8

,5
0

0
2

8
,5

0
0

2
8

,5
0

0
0

A
ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 H

A
L

S
 P

ro
je

c
t 
0

7
/0

9
4

6
0

,0
0

0
4

6
0

,0
0

0
4

6
0

,0
0

0
0

E
A

G
A

 E
n

e
rg

y
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 

1
1

0
,0

0
0

1
1

0
,0

0
0

1
1

0
,0

0
0

0
A

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 P

ro
je

c
t 
(S

it
e

 A
s
s
e

m
b

ly
)

5
8

0
,0

0
0

5
8

0
,0

0
0

5
8

0
,0

0
0

0

D
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 C

h
o

rl
e

y
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

1
0

0
,0

0
0

1
0

0
,0

0
0

1
0

0
,0

0
0

0

M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 C

h
o

rl
e

y
1

0
,0

0
0

1
0

,0
0

0
1

0
,0

0
0

0

E
a

v
e

s
 G

re
e

n
 L

in
k
 R

o
a

d
 -

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t
o

 L
C

C
 s

c
h

e
m

e
1

,2
1

4
,1

5
0

1
,2

1
4

,1
5

0
2

6
6

,7
5

0
9

4
7

,4
0

0

Agenda Item 11Agenda Page 72



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 A

C
a
p

it
a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
2

0
0

7
/0

8
2

0
0

7
/0

8

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

E
s

ti
m

a
te

S
li
p

p
a

g
e

 t
o

 

2
0

0
8

/0
9

O
th

e
r 

C
h

a
n

g
e

s

R
e

v
is

e
d

 

E
s

ti
m

a
te

E
x

te
rn

a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

C
B

C
 

F
u

n
d

in
g

S
c

h
e

m
e

£
£

£
£

£
£

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir

e
c

to
r 

(B
u

s
in

e
s

s
) 

T
o

ta
l

3
,1

7
1

,4
7

0
0

1
,2

4
7

,8
1

0
4

,4
1

9
,2

8
0

2
,3

7
5

,0
5

0
2

,0
4

4
,2

3
0

Agenda Item 11Agenda Page 73



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 A

C
a
p

it
a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
2

0
0

7
/0

8
2

0
0

7
/0

8

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

E
s

ti
m

a
te

S
li
p

p
a

g
e

 t
o

 

2
0

0
8

/0
9

O
th

e
r 

C
h

a
n

g
e

s

R
e

v
is

e
d

 

E
s

ti
m

a
te

E
x

te
rn

a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

C
B

C
 

F
u

n
d

in
g

S
c

h
e

m
e

£
£

£
£

£
£

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir

e
c

to
r 

(P
e

o
p

le
)

L
e

is
u

re
 C

e
n

tr
e

s
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
In

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t
7

1
6

,2
5

0
7

1
6

,2
5

0
7

1
6

,2
5

0

D
u

x
b

u
ry

 P
a

rk
 G

o
lf
 C

o
u

rs
e

 c
a

p
it
a

l 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t
4

6
5

,2
4

0
(4

6
,4

0
0

)
4

1
8

,8
4

0
4

1
8

,8
4

0

A
s
tl
e

y
 P

a
rk

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 -
 C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
1

,6
4

4
,6

9
0

(1
,0

9
2

,0
0

0
)

4
9

6
,1

3
0

1
,0

4
8

,8
2

0
8

1
7

,9
4

0
2

3
0

,8
8

0

B
ri

n
s
c
a

ll 
S

w
im

m
in

g
 P

o
o

l 
R

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n

t
1

9
0

,0
0

0
1

9
0

,0
0

0
1

9
0

,0
0

0

V
ill

a
g

e
 H

a
ll 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 C

e
n

tr
e

s
 P

ro
je

c
ts

1
2

0
,0

0
0

1
2

0
,0

0
0

1
2

0
,0

0
0

A
s
tl
e

y
 H

a
ll/

P
a

rk
 C

C
T

V
2

4
,0

0
0

1
0

,0
0

0
3

4
,0

0
0

2
4

,0
0

0
1

0
,0

0
0

C
e

m
e

te
ry

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

1
3

,0
0

0
(6

,5
0

0
)

6
,5

0
0

6
,5

0
0

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir

e
c

to
r 

(P
e

o
p

le
) 

T
o

ta
l

3
,1

7
3

,1
8

0
(1

,1
4

4
,9

0
0

)
5

0
6

,1
3

0
2

,5
3

4
,4

1
0

8
4

1
,9

4
0

1
,6

9
2

,4
7

0

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir

e
c

to
r 

(N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s

)

E
x
te

n
s
io

n
 t
o

 C
h

o
rl

e
y
 C

e
m

e
te

ry
 (

n
e

w
 b

u
ri

a
l 
a

re
a

)
8

3
0

8
3

0
8

3
0

L
it
te

r/
D

o
g

 W
a

s
te

/O
n

-s
tr

e
e

t 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 b

in
s

1
6

,3
9

0
1

6
,3

9
0

1
6

,3
9

0

R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
/l
it
te

r 
b

in
s
 &

 c
o

n
ta

in
e

rs
5

0
,0

0
0

5
0

,0
0

0
5

0
,0

0
0

E
n

h
a

n
c
e

d
 R

e
c
y
c
lin

g
/K

e
rb

s
id

e
 C

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
1

5
8

,0
0

0
1

5
8

,0
0

0
1

5
8

,0
0

0

A
d

lin
g

to
n

 P
la

y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
(S

1
0

6
 f
u

n
d

e
d

)
2

5
,0

0
0

2
5

,0
0

0
2

5
,0

0
0

0

H
a

rp
e

rs
 L

a
n

e
 R

e
c
re

a
ti
o

n
 G

ro
u

n
d

 I
m

p
s
 (

S
1

0
6

 f
u

n
d

e
d

)
3

0
,0

0
0

3
0

,0
0

0
3

0
,0

0
0

0

P
la

n
ti
n

g
 S

c
h

e
m

e
s
 I
T

 S
y
s
te

m
3

5
0

(3
5

0
)

0
0

A
s
tl
e

y
 P

a
rk

 W
o

o
d

la
n

d
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
5

6
,0

0
0

5
6

,0
0

0
5

6
,0

0
0

0

C
h

o
rl

e
y
 C

e
m

e
te

ry
 L

o
d

g
e

 R
e

fu
rb

is
h

m
e

n
t

1
3

,0
0

0
1

3
,0

0
0

1
3

,0
0

0

V
a

ri
o

u
s
 t
ra

ff
ic

 c
a

lm
in

g
/l
o

c
a

l 
ro

a
d

 s
a

fe
ty

 s
c
h

e
m

e
s

1
8

,0
0

0
1

8
,0

0
0

1
8

,0
0

0

H
ig

h
w

a
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 -
 G

ill
ib

ra
n

d
 e

s
ta

te
/S

o
u

th
la

n
d

s
9

0
,0

0
0

9
0

,0
0

0
9

0
,0

0
0

0

In
te

lli
g

e
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
7

8
,9

6
0

3
5

0
7

9
,3

1
0

5
0

,0
0

0
2

9
,3

1
0

P
la

y
/R

e
c
re

a
ti
o

n
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 (

S
1

0
6

 f
u

n
d

e
d

)
3

7
,8

8
0

3
7

,8
8

0
3

7
,8

8
0

0

A
lle

y
g

a
te

s
4

0
,0

0
0

4
0

,0
0

0
4

0
,0

0
0

D
E

F
R

A
 W

a
s
te

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 &
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 G

ra
n

t 
s
c
h

e
m

e
4

4
,9

7
0

4
4

,9
7

0
4

4
,9

7
0

0

M
e

m
o

ri
a

l 
S

a
fe

ty
 -

 C
lo

s
e

d
 C

h
u

rc
h

y
a

rd
s

2
0

,0
0

0
2

0
,0

0
0

2
0

,0
0

0

U
ln

e
s
 W

a
lt
o

n
 P

la
y
/L

e
is

u
re

 S
c
h

e
m

e
s
 (

S
1

0
6

 f
u

n
d

e
d

)
1

0
,6

3
0

1
0

,6
3

0
1

0
,6

3
0

0

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
la

y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
P

la
n

5
0

,0
0

0
5

0
,0

0
0

5
0

,0
0

0

V
a

c
a

n
t 
D

w
e

lli
n

g
s

1
8

,6
6

0
(1

8
,6

6
0

)
0

0

B
u

ild
in

g
 S

a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
2

6
,7

6
0

2
6

,7
6

0
2

6
,7

6
0

0

C
o

p
p

u
ll 

P
la

y
z
o

n
e

2
5

,0
0

0
2

5
,0

0
0

2
5

,0
0

0
0

Agenda Item 11Agenda Page 74



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 A

C
a
p

it
a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
2

0
0

7
/0

8
2

0
0

7
/0

8

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

E
s

ti
m

a
te

S
li
p

p
a

g
e

 t
o

 

2
0

0
8

/0
9

O
th

e
r 

C
h

a
n

g
e

s

R
e

v
is

e
d

 

E
s

ti
m

a
te

E
x

te
rn

a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

C
B

C
 

F
u

n
d

in
g

S
c

h
e

m
e

£
£

£
£

£
£

L
ig

h
ti
n

g
 a

t 
C

o
ro

n
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
c
re

a
ti
o

n
 G

ro
u

n
d

0
5

6
,0

0
0

5
6

,0
0

0
5

6
,0

0
0

0

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir

e
c

to
r 

(N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s

) 
T

o
ta

l
7

9
0

,4
3

0
0

5
7

,3
4

0
8

4
7

,7
7

0
4

5
2

,2
4

0
3

9
5

,5
3

0

C
a

p
it

a
l 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 T
o

ta
l

8
,7

9
8

,3
1

0
(1

,1
7

6
,6

5
0

)
2

,5
5

3
,5

8
0

1
0

,1
7

5
,2

4
0

3
,7

7
9

,2
2

0
6

,3
9

6
,0

2
0

Agenda Item 11Agenda Page 75



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 A

C
a
p

it
a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
2

0
0

7
/0

8
2

0
0

7
/0

8

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

E
s

ti
m

a
te

S
li
p

p
a

g
e

 t
o

 

2
0

0
8

/0
9

O
th

e
r 

C
h

a
n

g
e

s

R
e

v
is

e
d

 

E
s

ti
m

a
te

E
x

te
rn

a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

C
B

C
 

F
u

n
d

in
g

S
c

h
e

m
e

£
£

£
£

£
£

F
in

a
n

c
in

g
 t

h
e

 C
a

p
it

a
l 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

P
ru

d
e

n
ti
a

l 
B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

3
,3

1
9

,2
9

0
(2

6
8

,8
1

0
)

(2
1

,1
9

0
)

3
,0

2
9

,2
9

0
3

,0
2

9
,2

9
0

U
n

re
s
tr

ic
te

d
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
R

e
c
e

ip
ts

4
7

1
,5

2
0

(1
2

,4
0

0
)

8
6

0
,8

8
0

1
,3

2
0

,0
0

0
1

,3
2

0
,0

0
0

H
o

u
s
in

g
 I
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 R
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
R

e
c
e

ip
ts

3
5

8
,5

4
0

3
5

8
,5

4
0

3
5

8
,5

4
0

C
a

p
it
a

l 
R

e
c
e

ip
t 
e

a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 f
o

r 
S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 R

e
g

io
n

a
l 
S

it
e

5
7

6
,5

3
0

5
7

6
,5

3
0

5
7

6
,5

3
0

P
re

s
e

rv
e

d
 R

T
B

 C
a

p
it
a

l 
R

e
c
e

ip
ts

 f
ro

m
 C

C
H

0
1

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

1
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
1

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
- 

S
p

e
c
if
ic

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 R

e
s
e

rv
e

s
 o

r 
B

u
d

g
e

ts
1

1
1

,6
6

0
1

1
1

,6
6

0
1

1
1

,6
6

0

C
B

C
 R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s
4

,8
3

7
,5

4
0

(2
8

1
,2

1
0

)
1

,8
3

9
,6

9
0

6
,3

9
6

,0
2

0
0

6
,3

9
6

,0
2

0

E
x
t.
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
s
 -

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

e
rs

1
,0

6
8

,8
0

0
2

6
6

,7
5

0
1

,3
3

5
,5

5
0

1
,3

3
5

,5
5

0
0

E
x
t.
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
s
 -

 L
o

tt
e

ry
 B

o
d

ie
s

1
,3

2
2

,2
4

0
(8

9
5

,4
4

0
)

4
4

5
,1

4
0

8
7

1
,9

4
0

8
7

1
,9

4
0

0

E
x
t.
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
s
 -

 O
th

e
r

3
3

0
,0

0
0

2
,0

0
0

3
3

2
,0

0
0

3
3

2
,0

0
0

0

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
G

ra
n

ts
 -

 D
is

a
b

le
d

 F
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 G

ra
n

ts
1

8
0

,0
0

0
1

8
0

,0
0

0
1

8
0

,0
0

0
0

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
G

ra
n

ts
 -

 D
E

F
R

A
4

4
,9

7
0

4
4

,9
7

0
4

4
,9

7
0

0

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
G

ra
n

ts
 -

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
G

ra
n

t
7

8
8

,0
0

0
7

8
8

,0
0

0
7

8
8

,0
0

0
0

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
G

ra
n

ts
 -

 L
P

S
A

1
5

0
,0

0
0

5
0

,0
0

0
5

0
,0

0
0

0

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
G

ra
n

ts
 -

 L
A

B
G

I
1

5
0

,0
0

0
1

5
0

,0
0

0
1

5
0

,0
0

0
0

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
G

ra
n

ts
 -

 O
th

e
r

2
6

,7
6

0
2

6
,7

6
0

2
6

,7
6

0
0

E
x

te
rn

a
l 
F

u
n

d
in

g
3

,9
6

0
,7

7
0

(8
9

5
,4

4
0

)
7

1
3

,8
9

0
3

,7
7

9
,2

2
0

3
,7

7
9

,2
2

0
0

T
o

ta
l 
c

a
p

it
a

l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

8
,7

9
8

,3
1

0
(1

,1
7

6
,6

5
0

)
2

,5
5

3
,5

8
0

1
0

,1
7

5
,2

4
0

3
,7

7
9

,2
2

0
6

,3
9

6
,0

2
0

T
O

T
A

L
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

8
,7

9
8

,3
1

0
(1

,1
7

6
,6

5
0

)
2

,5
5

3
,5

8
0

1
0

,1
7

5
,2

4
0

3
,7

7
9

,2
2

0
6

,3
9

6
,0

2
0

Agenda Item 11Agenda Page 76



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 B

C
a
p

it
a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
O

th
e

r 

C
h

a
n

g
e

s

E
x

te
rn

a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

C
B

C
 

F
u

n
d

in
g

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

S
c

h
e

m
e

£
£

£

A
s

s
is

ta
n

t 
C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 (
B

u
s

in
e

s
s

 T
ra

n
s

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t)

T
o

w
n

 H
a

ll 
D

is
a

b
le

d
 A

c
c
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 R
e

fu
rb

is
h

m
e

n
t

1
1

,3
0

0
1

1
,3

0
0

F
in

a
l 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

n
c
y
 c

o
s
ts

 r
e

 m
a

in
 r

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n

t 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t

G
ill

ib
ra

n
d

 L
in

k
 R

o
a

d
 -

 l
a

n
d

 a
s
s
e

m
b

ly
7

3
1

,0
0

0
7

3
1

,0
0

0
In

c
re

a
s
e

d
 c

o
s
t 
o

f 
c
o

m
p

e
n

s
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 c
o

s
ts

A
s

s
is

ta
n

t 
C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 (
B

u
s

in
e

s
s

 T
ra

n
s

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t)

 T
o

ta
l

7
4

2
,3

0
0

0
7

4
2

,3
0

0

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir

e
c

to
r 

(B
u

s
in

e
s

s
)

G
ro

u
n

d
w

o
rk

 P
ro

je
c
ts

1
5

,0
0

0
1

5
,0

0
0

L
e

v
e

rs
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 f
ro

m
 o

th
e

r 
p

a
rt

ie
s
 f
o

r 
s
m

a
ll 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
p

ro
je

c
ts

P
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 
A

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 H
o

u
s
in

g
(6

1
,0

6
0

)
(7

9
,7

2
0

)
1

8
,6

6
0

T
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e

d
 f
ro

m
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
(N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
)

R
e

g
io

n
a

l 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 P

o
t 
C

a
p

it
a

l 
G

ra
n

t 
fu

n
d

e
d

 s
c
h

e
m

e
s

(5
9

7
,7

8
0

)
(5

9
7

,7
8

0
)

0
R

e
a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
 t
o

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 p
ro

je
c
ts

A
ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 H

a
lli

w
e

ll 
S

tr
e

e
t 
P

ro
je

c
t 
2

0
0

7
-2

0
1

0
7

9
,0

0
0

7
9

,0
0

0
0

U
s
e

 o
f 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e

H
o

m
e

le
s
s
 p

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 C

e
n

tr
a

l 
L

a
n

c
s
 S

a
n

c
tu

a
ry

 S
c
h

e
m

e
 P

ro
je

c
t

2
8

,5
0

0
2

8
,5

0
0

0
U

s
e

 o
f 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e

A
ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 H

A
L

S
 P

ro
je

c
t 
0

7
/0

9
4

6
0

,0
0

0
4

6
0

,0
0

0
0

U
s
e

 o
f 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e

E
A

G
A

 E
n

e
rg

y
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 

1
1

0
,0

0
0

1
1

0
,0

0
0

0
U

s
e

 o
f 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e

E
a

v
e

s
 G

re
e

n
 L

in
k
 R

o
a

d
 -

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t
o

 L
C

C
 s

c
h

e
m

e
1

,2
1

4
,1

5
0

2
6

6
,7

5
0

9
4

7
,4

0
0

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t
o

 L
C

C
's

 c
o

s
ts

 a
n

d
 p

a
y
m

e
n

t 
o

f 

ra
n

s
o

m
 v

a
lu

e
 r

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
la

n
d

, 
fi
n

a
n

c
e

d
 f
ro

m
 S

1
0

6
 

a
n

d
 e

a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 c
a

p
it
a

l 
re

c
e

ip
t

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir

e
c

to
r 

(B
u

s
in

e
s

s
) 

T
o

ta
l

1
,2

4
7

,8
1

0
2

6
6

,7
5

0
9

8
1

,0
6

0

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir

e
c

to
r 

(P
e

o
p

le
)

A
s
tl
e

y
 P

a
rk

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 -
 C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
4

9
6

,1
3

0
3

9
1

,1
4

0
1

0
4

,9
9

0
R

e
v
is

io
n

 t
o

 p
ro

je
c
t 
c
o

s
t 
a

g
re

e
d

 w
it
h

 H
e

ri
ta

g
e

 L
o

tt
e

ry
 

F
u

n
d

 w
h

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 8

2
%

 g
ra

n
t-

fu
n

d
in

g
, 
p

lu
s
 £

1
7

,0
0

0
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
d

e
s
ig

n
 c

o
s
ts

 n
o

t 
e

lig
ib

le
 f
o

r 
g

ra
n

t

A
s
tl
e

y
 H

a
ll/

P
a

rk
 C

C
T

V
1

0
,0

0
0

1
0

,0
0

0
In

c
re

a
s
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t
o

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 p

ro
je

c
t

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir

e
c

to
r 

(P
e

o
p

le
) 

T
o

ta
l

5
0

6
,1

3
0

3
9

1
,1

4
0

1
1

4
,9

9
0

Agenda Item 11Agenda Page 77



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 B

C
a
p

it
a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
O

th
e

r 

C
h

a
n

g
e

s

E
x

te
rn

a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

C
B

C
 

F
u

n
d

in
g

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

S
c

h
e

m
e

£
£

£

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir

e
c

to
r 

(N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s

)

P
la

n
ti
n

g
 S

c
h

e
m

e
s
 I
T

 S
y
s
te

m
(3

5
0

)
(3

5
0

)
T

ra
n

s
fe

rr
e

d
 t
o

 I
n

te
lli

g
e

n
t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n

In
te

lli
g

e
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
3

5
0

3
5

0
B

a
la

n
c
e

 o
f 
P

la
n

ti
n

g
 S

c
h

e
m

e
s
 b

u
d

g
e

t

M
e

m
o

ri
a

l 
S

a
fe

ty
 -

 C
lo

s
e

d
 C

h
u

rc
h

y
a

rd
s

2
0

,0
0

0
2

0
,0

0
0

U
rg

e
n

t 
w

o
rk

 S
t 
J
o

h
n

's
 W

h
it
tl
e

 l
e

 W
o

o
d

s

V
a

c
a

n
t 
D

w
e

lli
n

g
s

(1
8

,6
6

0
)

(1
8

,6
6

0
)

T
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e

d
 t
o

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir

e
c
to

r 
(B

u
s
in

e
s
s
)

L
ig

h
ti
n

g
 a

t 
C

o
ro

n
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
c
re

a
ti
o

n
 G

ro
u

n
d

5
6

,0
0

0
5

6
,0

0
0

0
B

ig
 L

o
tt
e

ry
 F

u
n

d
 s

c
h

e
m

e

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir

e
c

to
r 

(N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s

) 
T

o
ta

l
5

7
,3

4
0

5
6

,0
0

0
1

,3
4

0

C
a

p
it

a
l 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 T
o

ta
l

2
,5

5
3

,5
8

0
7

1
3

,8
9

0
1

,8
3

9
,6

9
0

F
in

a
n

c
in

g
 t

h
e

 C
a

p
it

a
l 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

P
ru

d
e

n
ti
a

l 
B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

(2
1

,1
9

0
)

(2
1

,1
9

0
)

R
e

p
la

c
e

d
 b

y
 u

s
e

 o
f 
c
a

p
it
a

l 
re

c
e

ip
ts

U
n

re
s
tr

ic
te

d
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
R

e
c
e

ip
ts

8
6

0
,8

8
0

8
6

0
,8

8
0

R
e

c
e

ip
t 
e

a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 f
o

r 
E

a
v
e

s
 G

re
e

n
 L

in
k
 R

o
a

d
 p

ro
je

c
t

P
re

s
e

rv
e

d
 R

T
B

 C
a

p
it
a

l 
R

e
c
e

ip
ts

 f
ro

m
 C

C
H

1
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
1

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 r

e
c
e

ip
ts

 d
u

e
 f
ro

m
 C

C
H

C
B

C
 R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s
1

,8
3

9
,6

9
0

0
1

,8
3

9
,6

9
0

E
x
t.
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
s
 -

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

e
rs

2
6

6
,7

5
0

2
6

6
,7

5
0

0
S

1
0

6
 r

e
 E

a
v
e

s
 G

re
e

n
 L

in
k
 R

o
a

d

E
x
t.
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
s
 -

 L
o

tt
e

ry
 B

o
d

ie
s

4
4

5
,1

4
0

4
4

5
,1

4
0

0
In

c
re

a
s
e

 r
e

 A
s
tl
e

y
 P

a
rk

 a
n

d
 C

o
ro

n
a

ti
o

n
 R

G

E
x
t.
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
s
 -

 O
th

e
r

2
,0

0
0

2
,0

0
0

0
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 t
o

 C
o

ro
n

a
ti
o

n
 R

G
 p

ro
je

c
t

E
x

te
rn

a
l 
F

u
n

d
in

g
7

1
3

,8
9

0
7

1
3

,8
9

0
0

T
O

T
A

L
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

2
,5

5
3

,5
8

0
7

1
3

,8
9

0
1

,8
3

9
,6

9
0

Agenda Item 11Agenda Page 78



APPENDIX C 
 

 

 
 

 

2 October 2007  

         PK-01-00970/2 

Suzanne Cox 

Chorley Borough Council 

Civic Offices 

Union Street  

Chorley 

Lancashire 

PR3 2NQ 

 

 

 

 

Astley Park – Grant Increase 

 

Please find attached a side letter confirming the award of a further £373,000 

towards the continuing restoration of Astley Park and buildings within it 

including the Coach House and Pavilion.  The letter also confirms that Trustees 

agreed to the change to the approved purposes allowing the removal from 

the scheme of the lighting to Chorley Approach.   

 

The increase allows for a number of relatively minor across the board 

increases as well as for a number of more substantial increases including: 

• work to the Coach House taking into account the increase in tender 

price and the recommended higher specification for some items as set 

out in your Request for Grant Increase 

• toilets provided in the farmhouse 

• partial re-roofing of the Coach House  

• basic refurbishment of the pavilion to provide toilets and changing 

room facilities 

• new benches and bins 

• a new wall to be built between the boiler house and Astley Hall to 

ensure the security of the Hall after hours  

• additional contingency 

• additional fees  

 

The costs set out below are a guideline and there is room for movement 

between cost headings if necessary.  Please do not hesitate to contact me if 

you need any further information.   

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 11Agenda Page 79



Julia Doughan 

Grants Officer, North West Team 

Direct line: 0161 831 0859 

juliad@hlf.org.uk 

Detailed breakdown of cost increases after value engineering   

walled garden/nursery garden including new wall £114,291  

coach house including courtyard roof  £181,429  

benches/bins  £69,796  

demolition  £20,900 

play area, pets corner, adventure play  £43,839  

pavilion  £104,517 

Chorley Approach  £32,979  

Ackhurst Approach  £5,800  

lighting  £7,727 

external works  £50  

woodland clearance  £24,175  

subtotal  £605,503 

   

value engineering cost savings  £186,754  

total  £418,749 

   

contingency   £78,147  

fees  £51,233 

subtotal  £129,380 

   

total increase in costs   £548,129  

minus cost of lighting   £69,000  

minus Chorley BC partnership funding @ 22%  £106,000  

HLF grant increase request @ 78%  £373,129  
   
  
  
  
  
 
   
  
  
   
  
  
   
  
   
   
  
   

Agenda Item 11Agenda Page 80



Updated Template September 2007

Report of Meeting Date

Assistant Chief Executive 
(Business Transformation) 

Statutory S151 Officer 

Executive Cabinet 6 December 2007 

DRAFT GENERAL FUND BUDGET FOR 2008/09 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1. To secure the Executive’s agreement of the content of the draft revenue budget that will 
form the basis of further work in terms of delivering a balanced budget for 2008/09. 

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2. The Executive Cabinet are recommended to: 

 • Note my advice under S25 of the Local Government Act 2003 on the draft budget, 
particularly in relation to monitoring working balances within the range set out in the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy. 

 • Agree to the consultation process outlined in the report. 

 • Agree to consult on the savings proposals and the shape of the budget as outlined in 
the report. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT 

3. This report outlines the executives budget proposals for 2008/09.  The report sets out how 
the Executive propose to: 

• Balance the Council’s Budget 
• Continue to invest in priorities 
• Protect front line services 

4. That said the financial position is such that significant savings have to be achieved, this is a 
result of the fact that firstly, the levels of additional government grant are likely to be 
contained and secondly, the current costs of the continuation of our services needs to be 
realigned.

5. The strategy for achieving a balanced budget has been to: 

• Focus on a line by line review of current spending 
• Identify where possible savings that are administrative in nature and do not affect front 

line services 
• Look for opportunities to generate additional income 

6. The details of the strategy and proposal are set out in detail in the paper.  Also included is a 
review of the level of the Council’s working balances.  The financial risk profile has changed 
due to a number of factor and as such working balance need to be maintained at a higher 
level that has been the case previously. 

Agenda Item 13Agenda Page 81



7. I am required as part of the budget process to review the assumptions and budget 
proposals in terms of their deliverability and my thoughts are set out in the paper, but 
essentially confirm that the basis of the budget is robust and that together with the changes 
proposed in the level of working balances, protects against the financial risks the Council 
face.  The current forecasts and budget proposals show the following: 

Table 1:  Budget Position

£’000 £’000

Budget gap based upon 
service continuation 

  640 

Less proposals to balance 
and rebasing

  - 315 

   325 

Savings proposals  -187  

Income generated  -223  

3% Council Tax Increase  -180  - 590 

Headroom for Growth   - 265 

8. The analysis shows that under the current proposals a sum of £265k would be available to 
enhance the services the Council delivers.  The Executive propose that this sum is used in 
the following way: 

 Table 2:  Investment Proposals

£’000

Cash spent in neighbourhoods 100 

Projects delivered by the Council and 15 
parties

90

Extending opening hours at Astley Hall 40 

Events and Tourism Officer 25 

Extend Get Up and Go Scheme 10 

Total 265 

9. More details of the investment plans are shown in the budget consultation document which 
will be tabled at the meeting. 

10. This report should be read in conjunction with the report included elsewhere on his agenda, 
containing the Executive proposal for Capital Investment contained in the Capital 
Investment Programme. 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 

(If the recommendations are accepted) 

11. To begin the budget consultation process for 2008/09. 

Agenda Item 13Agenda Page 82



ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

12. None. 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

13. The budget is the ultimate expression of corporate priorities and it is the essential that the 
link between priorities and resources used is explicit in any budget proposal. 

Put Chorley at the heart of regional 
economic development in the 
central Lancashire sub region 

Improved access to public services 

Improving equality of opportunity 
and life chance 

Develop the character and feel of 
Chorley as a good place to live 

Involving People in their 
Communities

Ensure Chorley is a performing 
Organisation

BACKGROUND

14. The policy context for this budget whilst driven to some extent by National, Regional and 
Sub-Regional issues is influenced most by the local issues highlighted in the Corporate 
Strategy.

15. The development of the refreshed Community Strategy and the objectives therein form 
the basis of the Council’s own Corporate Strategy.  Contained in that document are the 
key objectives, outcomes and targets the Council works to deliver as part of its 
contribution to the overall well-being of the area. 

16. Some of the main local issues are: 
 • Access to affordable housing. 
 • The development of the local economy. 
 • Continuing to develop the effectiveness of the Local Strategy Partnership. 
 • Engagement, participation and satisfaction with local service delivery. 
 • For the first time looking to improve the environment through developing measures to 

combat climate change. 

17. The context is also in part, set by the proposed Medium Term Financial Strategy which 
forms the framework on which the budget is built, particular key targets of note include: 

Working balances will not be used to finance recurrent expenditure. 

Working balances will be maintained at a level between £1.25m - £1.50m with a review 
in light of the Council’s financial risk profile after 18 months. 

18. The risk profile has change significantly since the last Medium Term Financial Strategy 
was set and this is discussed later in this document. 

19. The key debate in terms of the budget involves the means of resolving the conflict 
between various policy implications and the availability of resources including the level of 
Council Tax to be set. 

Agenda Item 13Agenda Page 83



RESOURCE CONTEXT 

20. The government recently announced its spending plan for 2008/09 to 2010/11, the key 
messages from that Comprehensive Spending Review 2007 are: 

• An increase in the funds/grants available to local government of 4.2% in 2008/09; 
3.5% in 2009/10 and 3.4% in 2010/11.  After accounting for inflation this amounts in 
real terms increases of 1.5%, 0.80% and 0.7% over the CSR period. 

• This is significantly less than the previous period and the important issue for this 
Council will be the level of additional grant it receives.  Within that lessened resources 
figure the government’s priorities will continue to be the services delivered by other 
public sector bodies and not those by district councils. 

• Additional grant has been allocated for the cost of implementing the new free 
concessionary travel scheme from April 2008.  This will initially be paid direct to 
councils rather than through the rate support grant mechanism.  Although this may 
change in later years with it being consumed into the grant settlement. 

• A 3% CASHABLE efficiency target for Local Councils over the CSR period. 

21. There were a series of other announcements made, which could affect the Council in 
relation to the financing of Local Area Agreements.  A change of specific grants to general 
grants which are NOT RING-FENCED will mean local priority will determine funding 
allocations.  This may have significant implications if for instance community safety 
became less of a priority, the Council may lose a significant funding stream that has 
helped it to deliver on its Crime and Disorder Agenda? 

22. The Government also expects that Local Authorities will keep Council Tax increase WELL 
BELOW 5% in each of the next three years. 

23. At present no indicative figures are available in relation to any of the funding streams.  
This information will only become available in mid December.  As such assumptions have 
been made which may or may not be accurate.  I will report to members the impact of the 
settlements once more details become available as part of the final budget setting 
process.

CONSULTATION

24. For 2008/09, the process will consist of: 

• Circulation of the draft budget papers to partners and stakeholders. 

• Publication of the detailed information on the Internet and Intranet, supplemented by 
a press release. 

• Specific meetings with Parish Councils and trade unions. 

• Review by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Panels of the draft budget. 

• Engagement with the refreshed Citizens Panel. 

25. In previous years the feedback from the general public has been limited.  The hope is that 
by engaging the Citizens Panel.  In particular, the feedback may be more useful? 

Agenda Item 13Agenda Page 84



THE COST OF MAINTAINING CURRENT SERVICE LEVELS 

26. Appendix 1 sets out the cost of maintenance of current service levels and any additional 
statutory requirements, adjusted for known changes that should have no impact on the 
level of service provided.  This is summarised in the table below: 

Table 3 – The Cost of maintaining current service levels and meeting statutory 

requirement

 £’000 

2007/08 Budget requirement  14,088 

Pay Inflation  458 

Increments  107 

Job Evaluation  (170) 

Other Changes  381 

Total  14,864 

27. The figures represent a cost increase of 5.6% compared with the 2007/08 figures.  
However it should be borne in mind that much of the increase is beyond the Council’s 
control.

• Pay awards are settled nationally and pension costs are at the mercy of the 
performance of the financial markets. 

• Contractual commitments. 

CAPITAL FINANCING COSTS 

28. Also included on this agenda is a draft Capital Programme for 2008/09 to 2010/11.  Again 
this is predicated upon a number of key assumptions, particularly in relation to the levels 
of specific capital grant that the Council may receive.  Once again the details of these 
sums will only become available later in the planning cycle. 

29. The key issue as always for Members is how affordable are the Plans.  As in previous 
years the Council’s ability to deliver investment is dependent upon its ability to generate 
planning gain receipts and other capital receipts.  The levels of borrowing are increasingly 
kept to a minimum as the pressure on the Council’s revenue budget is sufficient to mean 
little headroom for investment is available.  That said the Council has been particularly 
successful at attracting S106 funds but going forward these are likely to decrease over the 
medium term as the opportunities for attracting such funding decrease. 

30. The expected levels of borrowing whilst still low in relation to the totality of the programme 
do have revenue consequences and these has been factored into future revenue budget 
forecasts.

BALANCING THE BUDGET 

31. All the figures that follow reflect a tax base of 35,296.10.  The figure has been set under 
the powers delegated to the Director of Finance by the Council  This is an increase of 
331.10 (0.94%) on the last financial year and is in line with expectations. 

32. The Strategy for bridging the budget gap is built on the following principles: 

• Minimising the level of Council Tax increase. 

Agenda Item 13Agenda Page 85



• Creating headroom in the budget to continue investing in priorities. 

• Rebasing the Council’s budget based upon historic performance and future 
expectations.

• Maximising the Council’s revenue earning opportunities. 

• Minimising the impact on service delivery. 

33. A summary of the effect on the rebasing exercise and an analysis of the significant 
movements in budget year on  year is shown in Appendices 2 and 3. 

34. A summary of the proposals to make efficiencies and to maximise income opportunities 
are shown in Appendices 4 and 5 respectively. 

35. In terms of the overall message from the proposals it is clear that all the above principles 
have been utilised in that: 

• The proposed level of Council Tax is well below the 5% expected by the Government 
at 3%, currently the retail price index is at just over 4%. 

• Further investment in the Council’s Corporate Priorities is proposed. 

• The line by line review of the base budget has elicited significant savings. 

• The review of revenue generating activities has identified some opportunities. 

• The number of changes in both the level and nature of the Councils staffing 
establishment is minimal. 

POLICY CHOICES 

36. The Administration in policy terms have determined that they wish to continue to have low 
Council Tax rises.  In terms of its impact on services the overwhelming objective is to at 
least maintain service delivery at its current level given that in most cases the Council is 
performing well. 

37. However within that context and within the Council’s resources constraints some 
resources have been identified to be put into priority areas of the Corporate Strategy.  A 
summary of the current 2007/08 budget resources mapped against the Council’s priorities 
shows the following: 

Agenda Item 13Agenda Page 86



 Diagram 4:  Current Resource Allocation

38. The table shows that the bulk of the Council’s resources are spent in developing the look 
and feel of Chorley and ensuring Chorley is a performing organisation.  The draft budget 
for 2008/09 includes: 

• Additional resources to develop the effectiveness of the LSP. 

• More money to develop the Council’s emerging neighbourhood agenda. 

• Complimentary funds to ensure that the refurbishment of Astley Park is supplemented 
by additional opening hours. 

• More financing to develop the opportunity for events development and the borough’s 
tourism officer and the Get Up and Go Programme. 

39. However as investment is being made in some priority areas this ultimately means that in 
order to deliver a balanced budget savings from other areas have to be made, set out 
below is my assessment of the impact the proposals may have. 

40. The bulk of the savings are being made from the two priorities of developing the character 
and feel of Chorley and ensuring Chorley is a performing organisation. 

RISK ISSUES

41. In terms of the budget proposal there still remains a number of risk areas where actual 
performance may not match the assumptions made.  In such an event this may impact on 
the Council’s ability to deliver a balanced budget.  The majority of these areas are not 
unique to Chorley and are recurrent issues in many cases, given the nature of local 
authority business. 

42. The risk in almost all cases is a result of not having information on which to base future 
forecasts.  This position is a result of either a budget being demand led, as is the case 
with Concessionary Travel or information on particular funding streams not being available 
until later in the year. 

4.896

-0.182 1.005

0.859

1.482

6.475

Heart of Economic
Development

Reduce Inequality

Involved Communities

Access to Services

Character and Feel

Performing
Organisation

Agenda Item 13Agenda Page 87



43. In respect of the key assumptions in the budget, these are as follows: 

 Table 5.  Budget Assumptions 

Assumption %/£ 

Pay Award +2.5% 

Grant Settlement +3.0% 

Pension Contribution +1.0% 

Housing Planning Grant +£75k 

Concessionary Travel +50% 

44. In relation to each individual item I would make the following comments: 

PAY AWARD

45. The assumption is based upon the 2007 settlement and the stated intention of the 
Government to restrain Public Sector Pay Awards. 

GRANT SETTLEMENT

46. The Comprehensive Spending Review 2007 (CSR07) in terms of headlines indicates that 
for Local Government as a whole grant increases will be 1% in real terms (above 
inflation).  However, it is not possible to identify the level of grant that will flow through in 
terms of settlement.  However, every 0.5% difference will account for £40k. 

PENSIONS CONTRIBUTION

47. A current revaluation is underway in relation to the Pension Scheme and this will set the 
employers contribution.  Over the last 12 months there has been a general improvement 
in the pension deficit, due in the main to better investment performance.  I have therefore 
assumed the following: 

 2008/09 +1% 
 2009/10 +0.5% 
 2010/11 +0.5% 

48. Again the actual results will only be known later in the financial year, but before the budget 
setting meeting. 

HOUSING AND PLANNING GRANT

49. This year 2007/08 is the last year of receipt for planning delivery grant.  This specific grant 
has been paid to the Council and other Council’s to invest in improving planning service.  
The successor of this grant is the Housing and Planning Delivery Grant.  There is a paper 
elsewhere on this agenda that sets out the details of the new grant.  I have assumed for 
budget planning purposes that the Council will receive some grant and this is based upon 
my assessment of current performance against the allocations criteria, which may change. 

CONCESSIONARY TRAVEL

50. This particular element of the budget represents the greatest risk in terms of identifying 
accurately the likely cost of the new concessionary travel scheme which is to be 
implemented from April 2008.  There are two key risk issues namely: 

Agenda Item 13Agenda Page 88



 • we cannot estimate the potential take up in terms of additional concessionaries or 
the impact having a free service will have on travel patterns. 

 • At present Councils are charged based upon estimated rather than actual usages.  
With the introduction of the free scheme new smart Council technology will be 
introduced so that individual authorities can be charged on an actual basis.  This 
means historic cost will not be an indication of future costs. 

51. Whilst the gross extra cost of the new concession is estimated to be in the region of 
£320k, the Government has announced extra specific grant for Councils and I have 
assured the worst case scenario in terms of the level of grant we may receive at £207k. 

52. The Government are currently consulting on the method of grant allocation, but nothing is 
yet finalised.  In addition it is proposed that the current discretions granted by the Council 
in relation to both community transport and subsidised bus rates are maintained for 
2008/09, with a review taking place in a year of the success or otherwise of maintaining 
those discretions. 

EXPENDITURE SAVINGS

53. Turning to the savings and additional fees and charges Income proposed in the draft 
budget, I made the following comments, which is strategic in nature and also does not 
focus on the minute of individual proposals. 

54. The budget proposals as they currently stand includes expected expenditure savings of 
£187k.  The bulk of the savings £117k are non staffing related and focus on areas where 
the impact on the delivery on front line services is minimised.  As such and given the 
scale of the individual savings proposals, it is unlikely that they will impact at all on the 
Council’s ability to deliver its corporate priorities. 

55. In relation to the savings from staffing costs in the context of the balancing of the Council’s 
budget these are less severe than in previous years and focus on streamlining middle 
management costs and some minor reductions in benefit staffing.  Again I anticipate that 
this will not significantly affect our overall ability to deliver the corporate plan targets and 
objectives but may impact on the levels of services being provided, but only at the 
margins.  In relation to the rebasing exercise some of the more significant adjustments 
have been as a consequence of the transfer of the Council’s housing stock to CCH.  The 
impact of this was not fully realised in the 2007/08 budget. 

INCOME PROGRAMME - FEES AND CHARGES INCOME

56. This year the Council has undertaken a strategic review of fees and charges with the 
objective of ensuring that the fees and charges were correct, covering costs and at a 
market rate.  In many instances the Council has not raised charges for over 5 years. 

57. The budget contains a number of proposals in relation to increasing those fees and 
charges that in some cases, for a number of years where they have been frozen.  This 
applies particularly to car parking income. 

58. In pure finance terms the restructuring of the fees and charges for car parking and the 
changing of market tolls is wholly appropriate. 

59. The financial risk to the Council is that there is a degree of consumer resistance to the 
proposed charges.  For this reason, I have adjusted a number of the fees and charges 
budgets that are subject to consumer choice and not taken the totality of the additional 
income that could be generated. 

Agenda Item 13Agenda Page 89



60. I believe that in this way a prudent approach has been adopted.  A summary of the levels 
of income currently anticipated for the major income streams and those subject to some 
amendments to the fees and charges is shown in the table below: 

Major Income Streams

 Table 6 - Total Fees and Charge Income

61. The table shows the importance of fees and charges income to the Council.  Its historic 
approach of containing the levels of fees and charges is not sustainable unless used for 
the delivery of strategic objectives. 

CONCLUSION OF THE ADEQUACY OF WORKING BALANCES AND THE ROBUSTNESS OF 

THE BUDGETED WORKING BALANCES

62. The current financial strategy that takes us up until the end of 2007/08 allocated for 
working balances to be in a range £780k-£1.25m.  This was based upon the financial risk 
profile which to a great extent has remained unchanged over that financial planning 
period.

63. However, from 2008/09 a number of the external factors influencing the Council’s ability to 
either attract funding or to influence expenditure has changed.  This is the main due to the 
following reasons: 

 • The CSR07 means that there is a risk of less rate support grant over the planning 
period 2008/09-2010/11. 

 • The full impact of the changes to the concessionary travel budget will not be 
known for at least 15 months in the new scheme. 

 • The impact of the development of Market Walk on car parking fees and charges 
will be unknown. 

 • The Government is capping capitalisation applications and as such the cost of 
change may need to be resourced from revenue. 

64. The greatest potential impact is likely to come from the concessionary travel issue, but all 
of the issues have the propensity to affect the Council’s ability to both balance its budget 
and continue to deliver effective services. 

65. In this respect, I am minded to propose that working balances are kept at a higher level in 
the next 12-18 months in recognition of the risks.  I therefore propose that working 
balances are kept in the range £1.25m-£1.50m for this period after which a further review 
needs to take place based upon the latest evidence. 

£'000

 Licensing Fees (161)

 Local Land Searches (189)

 Parking Fees (556)

 Market Toll (300)

 Planning and Building Control Fees (664)

 Investment Portfolio (414)

(2,284)

Agenda Item 13Agenda Page 90



66. As members will be aware, working balances are there to protect the Council’s against the 
‘peaks and troughs’ in expenditure and allows them to be able to manage any changes to 
be base level of expenditure that is required to bring the budget back into balance. 

67. Sometimes this can take time so maintaining working balances means the Council does 
not have to make reactive changes that can significantly impact on service performance. 

68. In terms of resource availability, members will be aware that the Council’s overall working 
balances position is made up of balances in hand and those to be transferred from the 
Housing Revenue Account, following stock transfer.  Whilst the exact date of the 
availability of these results is still subject to discussion with the CLG, they will become 
available over the planning period and as such will be available and this will mean that the 
working balances position is as follows: 

Source £’000

Estimated working balances based upon latest 
Revenue Monitoring Position 2007/08 

637

Estimated transfer of working balance 879 

Total 1,516 

69. With regard to the robustness of the budget assumption for 2008/09 once again each 
Directorate has had a line by line review completed on their budget and whilst there are 
still some issues to resolve they represent adjustments that are reasonable and 
deliverable.

70. In previous years the Council has been faced with the prospects of making savings and 
2008/09 will be exactly the same.  The savings are necessary firstly to contain of Council 
Tax and secondly, to redirect resources into corporate priorities.  This report has identified 
that more savings and investment plans are well developed but further work will be 
necessary as we work through the budget cycle and better and more up to date 
information becomes available. 

71. Some inherent risks remain in the budget but the underlying assumptions I have made 
have been agreed by the executive and I believe they are reasonable.  I have outlined my 
views and advice in relation to the level and adequacy of working balances and 
summarise the key risks and mitigation that are and should be put in place. 

IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT 

72. As this budget is for consultation only at this stage this has no impact on directorates. 

GARY HALL 
ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE (BUSINESS TRANSFORMATION) 

There are no background papers to this report. 

    

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID 

Gary Hall 5480 20 November 2007 FINREP/2011LM1

Agenda Item 13Agenda Page 91



Appendix 1

Analysis of Budget Variations 2007/08 - 2010/11

2007/08

£000

2008/09

£000

2009/10

£000

2010/11

£000

Base Budget Requirement 16,231       16,545       17,272       17,807       

Less Recharges 3                -            -            -            

Capital Charges (2,581) (1,998) (1,984) (1,984)

Cash Base Budget Requirement 13,654     14,547     15,288     15,823       

Movements:

Inflation Pay 325            371            361            357            

Pensions 112            87              46              48              

Non-Pay 62              37              43              27              

Contractual 126            41              15              16              

Income 13              (32) (28) (34)

Increments 96              107            65              38              

Revenue Effects of the Capital Programme 10              120            -            -            

Volume - Income 407            45              -            -            

Volume - Expenditure 434            495            53              33              

Investment 321            74              (20) -            

Savings - Star Chamber (1,265) (7) -            -            

Savings - Other (416) (10) -            -            

Senior Management Review (114) (174) -            -            

Base Budget Review -            (315) -            -            

Effects of stock transfer - Reduction in cost - Other 55              41              -            -            

Effects of stock transfer - Service Level Agreements (76) 22              -            -            

Contingency: -            

 - Genuine (50) (10) -            -            

 - Management of the Establishment 10              18              

 - Salary Related Savings (60) -            -            -            

 - Procurement Savings (35) -            -            -            

 - Gershon Savings (25) -            -            -            

 - Job Evaluation 256            (170) -            -            

Directorate & Corporate Cash Budgets 14,567     15,288     15,823     16,307       

Base Recharges (3) -            -            

In year transfer of recharges to cash budgets (17) -            -            -            

Capital: 1,684         1,998         1,984         1,984         

Base Capital Charges

In year transfer of capital 314            (14) -            -            

Total Recharges 1,978       1,984       1,984        1,984         

Total Directorate & Corporate Budgets 16,545     17,272     17,807     18,291       

Reversal of Capital Charges (1,678) (1,664) (1,664) (1,664)

Net Financing Transactions:

- Net Interest/Premuims/Discounts (314) (440) (440) (440)

- MRP less Commutation Adjustment 6                16              172            222            

Net Operating Expenditure 14,559     15,184     15,875     16,409       

Use of Earmarked Reserves

- Capital Financing Reserve re: Def Chge w/os (320) (320) (320) (320)

- Units Earmarked Reserves (151) -            -            -            

Total Expenditure 14,088     14,864     15,555     16,089       

Financed By

Council Tax - Borough (6,019) (6,080) (6,140) (6,202)

Parish Precepts 535            535            535            535            

Council Tax  Parishes (535) (535) (535) (535)

Aggregate External Finance (8,008) (8,457) (8,657) (8,857)

Collection Fund Surplus (60) -            -            

Total Financing (14,088) (14,536) (14,797) (15,058)

Net Expenditure 0              327          758           1,030         

Analysis of Net Expenditure (Budget Gap)

Net Expenditure Brought Forward -            -            327            758            

Net Expenditure in Year -            327            430            273            

Net Expenditure Carried Forward -          327          758           1,030         

Agenda Item 13Agenda Page 92



Appendix 2

Analysis of Significant Movements in Budget between 2007/08 & 2008/09

£'000

Pay 371

Pensions 87

Increments 107

Concessionary Travel 200

Concessionary Travel - impact of scheme changes 207

Housing Benefits - reduction in subsidy 141

Refuse Collection 97

Astley Park scheme - Grounds maintenance 70

Housing & Delivery Grant - new grant to replace PDG 70

Garage Rents (48)

Revenue salaries charged to capital schemes 28

Local Development Framework - use of earmarked reserve (52)

Bed & Breakfast costs 50

Non-Pay (Utilities/Leases/Insurances) 37

Telephony Review (30)

Management/maintenance of Garages 20

Liberata Contract - revised charges (36)

DPE Cash collection costs 35

Private Lifeline Alarms - function transferred to CCH 41

Senior Management Review (174)

Base Budget Review (315)

Job Evaluation (170)

Other changes 5

741

Agenda Item 13Agenda Page 93



Appendix 3

Base Budget Review Savings 2008/09

Savings

£

Chief Executive's Office

Conferences (1,000)

Car Leases (3,520)

Refreshments (2,500)

Stationery/Computer Consumables (6,000)

Photocopier Leases/Charges (19,500)

Other Minor Budgets (5,860)

(38,380)

Customer, Democratic & Legal Services

Central Emergency Service (9,940)

Photocopier Leases (2,700)

Members Subsistence/Hospitality (5,000)

Legal Publications (5,000)

Legal Fees (4,000)

Utilities - various 16,640

Gambling Premises income (7,200)

Internet charges (3,000)

Return of approx £3k lodged with court re CPO (3,000)

Hire of Lancastrian (22,850)

Other Minor Budgets (570)

(46,620)

Development & Regeneration

Stationery, directorate wide. (2,000)

Development Control/Other Fees (13,000)

Projects & Regen/Misc Expenses (15,150)

Misc expenses (Projects & Regen.) (5,150)

Stationery fees (2,000)

Postages (2,000)

Legal Fees (Development Control) (3,000)

Other Fees (Development Control) (5,150)

Urban Tree Scheme (500)

Fences (450)

Purchase/Maintenance of Furniture (2,370)

Microfiche/Microfilming (4,000)

Car Allowances (4,000)

(58,770)

Finance

Conferences (900)

Saving on Financial Accountant post (6,900)

Saving on Corporate Procurement Officer post (8,990)

Overtime (3,000)

Agency Staff (2,000)

Lone Working System (3,000)

Health & Safety contract with Bolton Council (5,000)

Allpay cards (6,500)

Anite contract (10,000)

Agenda Item 13Agenda Page 94



Base Budget Review Savings 2008/09

Savings

£

Other Minor Budgets (2,390)

(48,680)

Human Resources

Corporate Training (17,000)

ICT Services

Stationery (2,000)

Computer Equipment - Purchase (16,000)

Computer Consumables (2,600)

Computer Equipment/Software - Maintenance 5,700

Internet Charges (5,760)

(20,660)

Policy & Performance

Minor Budgets (490)

Streetscene, Neighbourhoods & Environment

Refuse Collection: Target Bonus 20,000

Refuse Collection: External Contractors (5,390)

Grounds Maintenance (6,000)

Special Projects (25,000)

Recycling income (15,000)

Refuse Collection income from SRBC (24,000)

Pest Control contracts 5,000

Maintenance of Street Furniture (6,150)

Maintenance of Bus Shelters (6,000)

Vehicle disposals -1 Tractor (4,000)

Reductions in working hours to 29 hours (8,220)

Reductions in working hours to 29 hours (9,090)

(83,850)

TOTAL SAVINGS (314,450)

Agenda Item 13Agenda Page 95



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 4

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

 O
F

 P
O

T
E

N
T

IA
L

 S
A

V
IN

G
S

 F
O

R
 D

IR
E

C
T

O
R

A
T

E
 S

A
V

IN
G

S
 T

A
R

G
E

T
S

 2
0
0
8
/0

9

2
0
0
8
/0

9
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

£
C

H
IE

F
 E

X
E

C
U

T
IV

E
S

 O
F

F
IC

E

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

(5
,0

0
0
)

In
c
o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 s

p
e
a
k
e
r'
s
 f
e
e
s
 a

n
d
 e

v
e
n
ts

. 
 R

is
k
 w

it
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
in

c
o
m

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
a
b
le

. 
 

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E

R
e
p
la

c
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
C

iv
ic

 c
a
r 

w
it
h
 "

G
re

e
n
" 

c
a
r

(3
,0

0
0
)

C
iv

ic
 c

a
r 

w
o
u
ld

 p
o
s
s
ib

ly
 n

o
t 
b
e
 a

s
 g

ra
n
d
 a

s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 b
u
t 
g
re

e
n
e
r

S
to

p
 T

o
w

n
 T

w
in

n
in

g
(4

,0
0
0
)

N
o
 t
o
w

n
 t
w

in
in

g
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 i
n
 0

7
/0

8
. 
 N

o
th

in
g
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 f
o
r 

0
8
/0

9
.

N
o
t 
u
s
in

g
 a

g
e
n
c
y
 s

ta
ff
 a

t 
e
le

c
ti
o
n
s

(4
,0

0
0
)

W
o
u
ld

 m
e
a
n
 u

s
in

g
 a

p
p
ro

x
 1

2
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

s
ta

ff
 f
o
r 

u
p
to

 2
 w

e
e
k
s
. 
D

ir
e
c
t 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 o

th
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

B
U

S
IN

E
S

S

H
e
ri
ta

g
e
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 G

ra
n
ts

(8
,0

0
0
)

D
is

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 l
is

te
d
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 o

w
n
e
rs

.

B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T

D
e
le

te
 v

a
c
a
n
t 
p
a
rt

-t
im

e
 B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 O
ff
ic

e
r 

p
o
s
t.

(1
3
,3

1
0
)

C
u
rr

e
n
t 
v
a
c
a
n
t 
p
o
s
t 
to

 b
e
 d

e
le

te
d
 f
ro

m
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t.
  
A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
p
re

s
s
u
re

s
 o

n
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 s

ta
ff
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 o
n
 L

in
e

(8
,0

0
0
)

S
to

p
 a

c
c
e
p
ti
n
g
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 b
y
 c

h
e
q
u
e
 v

ia
 A

n
it
e
. 
 W

ill
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s

ta
ff
in

g
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
.

IC
T

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

P
ro

v
is

io
n
 f
o
r 

a
d
h
o
c
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
s
 i
n
 y

e
a
r

(6
,0

0
0
)

R
e
m

a
in

in
g
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
to

 b
e
 u

s
e
d
 f
o
r 

p
ri
n
te

rs
 o

n
ly

. 
 R

e
in

fo
rc

e
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

s
ta

ff
 t
o
 a

d
o

p
t 
th

e
 l
e
s
s

e
x
p
e
n
s
iv

e
 t
h
in

 c
lie

n
t 
u
n
it
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 o

f 
m

o
re

 e
x
p
e
n
s
iv

e
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 
s
u
c
h
 a

s
 l
a
p
to

p
s
.

P
ro

v
is

io
n
 f
o
r 

m
is

c
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 i
n
 y

e
a
r

(1
0
,0

0
0
)

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
k
ill

s
/r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 b

e
in

g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 o

n
 a

 p
ro

je
c
t 
b
y
 p

ro
je

c
t

b
a
s
is

 a
n
d
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
p
ro

je
c
t 
c
o
s
ts

.

P
ro

v
is

io
n
 c

o
m

p
u
te

r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 G

IS
/L

L
P

G
(1

3
,6

0
0
)

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 w
ill

 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

b
e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 f
u
n
d
 a

n
 a

p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
. 
R

e
m

a
in

d
e
r 

o
f 
th

is
 s

a
v
in

g
 w

a
s
 t
o
 b

e

u
s
e
d
 t
o
 '
p
u
m

p
-p

ri
m

e
' 
th

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
G

IS
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

b
y
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 t
h
e
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
 o

f 
u
s
e
fu

l

d
a
ta

s
e
ts

. 
 T

h
e
s
e
 w

ill
 n

o
w

 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 b

e
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 s

o
m

e
 o

th
e
r 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is

m
.

P
E

O
P

L
E

R
e
d
u
c
e
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 f
o
r 

A
d
v
ic

e
 C

e
n
tr

e
 p

ro
je

c
t,
 M

a
rk

e
t 
S

tr
e
e
t

(1
0
,0

0
0
)

O
u
r 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 f
a
ll 

fr
o
m

 £
3
3
k
 t
o
 £

8
K

 f
o
r 

L
C

C
 W

e
lf
a
re

 R
ig

h
ts

 a
d
v
ic

e
 c

e
n
tr

e
.

R
e
d
u
c
e
 s

iz
e
 o

f 
B

T
 l
is

ti
n
g

(1
,0

0
0
)

In
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 a

 r
a
ti
o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 D

D
I 
n
u
m

b
e
rs

. 
 S

m
a
lle

r 
s
iz

e
d
 a

d
v
e
rt

 i
n
 B

T
 l
is

ti
n
g
.

S
to

p
 c

a
s
h
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 -

 r
e
d
u
c
e
 S

e
c
u
ri
c
o
r 

c
o
s
ts

(4
,0

0
0
)

C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 c

a
s
h
 i
s
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 d

a
ily

 f
ro

m
 U

n
io

n
 S

tr
e
e
t 
&

 w
e
e
k
ly

 f
ro

m
 A

s
tl
e
y
 H

a
ll.

 T
h
is

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e

re
d
u
c
e
d
 t
o
 w

e
e
k
ly

 f
o
r 

U
n
io

n
 S

tr
e
e
t 
&

 c
e
a
s
e
 f
o
r 

A
s
tl
e
y
 H

a
ll.

F
la

re
 L

ic
e
n
c
e
s

(5
,0

0
0
)

S
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 u
s
e
 o

f 
C

R
M

 a
n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 v

ia
 N

D
L
. 

Agenda Item 13Agenda Page 96



S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

 O
F

 P
O

T
E

N
T

IA
L

 S
A

V
IN

G
S

 F
O

R
 D

IR
E

C
T

O
R

A
T

E
 S

A
V

IN
G

S
 T

A
R

G
E

T
S

 2
0
0
8
/0

9

2
0
0
8
/0

9
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

£

P
O

L
IC

Y
 &

 P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s

(1
0
,0

0
0
)

E
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 i
n
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 f
o
r 

p
u
b
lic

it
y
.

A
P

S
E

 s
u
b
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

(5
,0

0
0
)

C
a
n
c
e
l 
a
n
n
u
a
l 
s
u
b
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
.

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

 F
e
e
s

(2
,0

0
0
)

R
e
d
u
c
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 f
o
r 

B
e
s
t 
V

a
lu

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
/P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t,
 e

tc
.

W
e
b
s
it
e
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

(5
,0

0
0
)

R
e
m

o
v
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 f
o
r 

o
n
e
 y

e
a
r 

o
n
ly

 f
o
r 

2
0
0
8
/0

9
.

N
O

N
 S

T
A

F
F

IN
G

 O
P

T
IO

N
S

(1
1
6
,9

1
0
)

S
T

A
F

F
 R

E
L

A
T

E
D

 O
P

T
IO

N
S

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E

M
e
rg

e
 E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
fu

n
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 &

(2
1
,2

1
0
)

D
e
ta

ile
d
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
.

v
a
lu

e
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 F

e
b
 0

8

N
E

IG
H

B
O

U
R

H
O

O
D

S

R
e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
 m

id
d
le

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

(4
8
,4

7
0
)

T
O

T
A

L
 H

IG
H

 R
IS

K
 O

P
T

IO
N

S
(6

9
,6

8
0
)

T
O

T
A

L
 S

A
V

IN
G

S
 O

P
T

IO
N

S
(1

8
6
,5

9
0
)

F
E

E
S

 &
 C

H
A

R
G

E
S

 R
E

V
IE

W
 O

P
T

IO
N

S
(2

2
3
,3

0
1
)

T
O

T
A

L
 P

O
T

E
N

T
IA

L
 S

A
V

IN
G

S
(4

0
9
,8

9
1
)

Agenda Item 13Agenda Page 97



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 5

P
R

O
P

O
S

A
L

S
 F

O
R

 I
N

C
R

E
A

S
IN

G
 F

E
E

S
 &

 C
H

A
R

G
E

S
 I
N

 2
0
0
8
/0

9 B
U

D
G

E
T

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
D

D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
A

T
E

IN
C

O
M

E
 A

R
E

A
2
0
0
7
/0

8
P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
IN

C
R

E
A

S
E

£
£

C
o

rp
. 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e

H
a
c
k
n
e
y
/P

rv
t 
C

a
rr

ia
g
e
 L

ic
e
n
c
e
s

(6
3
,4

1
0
)

In
c
re

a
s
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
 t
o
 c

o
in

c
id

e
 w

it
h
 c

o
m

p
o
ra

b
le

 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

c
h
a
rg

e
s

(2
,2

4
6
)

C
o

rp
. 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e

O
th

e
r 

L
ic

e
n
c
e
s

(1
,8

0
0
)

In
c
re

a
s
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
 t
o
 c

o
in

c
id

e
 w

it
h
 c

o
m

p
o
ra

b
le

 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

c
h
a
rg

e
s

(1
,9

3
7
)

B
u

s
in

e
s
s

L
o
c
a
l 
L
a
n
d
 C

h
a
rg

e
 S

e
a
rc

h
e
s

(1
8
8
,9

5
0
)

N
o
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 a

t 
th

is
 s

ta
g
e
. 
 R

e
v
ie

w
 t
o
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t.

0

C
B

C
 a

re
 i
n
 c

o
m

p
e
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

ri
v
a
te

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
. 

A
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 f
e
e
s
 c

o
u
ld

 r
is

k
 c

u
s
to

m
e
rs

 g
o
in

g
 e

ls
e
w

h
e
re

.

B
u

s
in

e
s
s

T
o
lls

 -
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
M

a
rk

e
t

(2
2
5
,0

0
0
)

3
%

 i
n
fl
a
ti
o
n
a
ry

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

n
 c

a
b
in

s
(6

,7
5
0
)

C
o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
 o

f 
1
0
 u

n
o
c
c
u
p
ie

d
 s

ta
lls

 i
n
to

 7
 c

a
b
in

s
 a

t 
h
ig

h
e
r 

re
n
ts

(5
,6

8
7
)

C
re

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
a
fé

 u
n
it
 f
ro

m
 5

 u
n
o
c
c
u
p
ie

d
 s

ta
lls

(2
,7

0
8
)

L
e
tt
in

g
 5

 o
f 
9
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 u

n
o
c
c
u
p
ie

d
 s

ta
lls

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 r

e
fu

rb
(5

,2
0
0
)

A
ll 

th
e
s
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 f
e
a
s
ib

le
, 
th

e
re

 i
s
 h

ig
h
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 f
o
r 

c
a
b
in

s
 a

n
d
 

e
x
p
re

s
s
io

n
s
 o

f 
in

te
re

s
t 
in

 t
h
e
 c

a
fé

.

B
u

s
in

e
s
s

B
C

C
'S

 P
la

n
s
 F

e
e
s

(1
3
7
,0

4
0
)

3
%

 i
n
fl
a
ti
o
n
a
ry

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

(4
,1

1
1
)

In
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 F

e
e
s
 B

u
ild

g
 C

o
n
tr

o
l

(1
7
6
,1

3
0
)

3
%

 i
n
fl
a
ti
o
n
a
ry

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

(5
,2

8
4
)

C
o
m

fo
rt

a
b
le

 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 f
e
e
s
 b

y
 3

%
. 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t
R

a
il 

P
a
s
s
 C

h
a
rg

e
(1

9
,3

9
0
)

A
d
d
in

g
 £

1
.0

0
 t
o
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
o
v
e
rh

e
a
d
 l
e
v
ie

d
 (

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 5

0
p
)

(1
,1

7
5
)

P
e
o

p
le

C
a
s
u
a
l 
H

ir
e
:O

ff
ic

e
s
 A

n
d
 R

o
o
m

s
(3

0
,4

3
0
)

3
%

 i
n
fl
a
ti
o
n
a
ry

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

(9
1
3
)

P
e
o

p
le

G
ra

n
t 
O

f 
R

ig
h
t 
O

f 
B

u
ri
a
l 
F

e
e
s

(2
0
,2

2
0
)

In
c
re

a
s
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
 f
ro

m
 £

4
9
5
 t
o
 £

8
0
0
. 
W

h
ic

h
 i
s
 m

a
rk

e
t 
ra

te
.

(1
2
,2

0
0
)

P
e
o

p
le

In
te

rm
e
n
t 
F

e
e
s

(5
2
,0

0
0
)

In
c
re

a
s
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
 t
o
 £

4
0
0
 f
ro

m
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
c
h
a
rg

e
 o

f 
£
3
6
0
. 
 

(3
,7

6
0
)

In
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 a

 n
e
w

 c
h
a
rg

e
 f
o
r 

c
re

m
a
te

d
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 p

lo
ts

 
(3

,2
0
0
)

P
e
o

p
le

In
d
o
o
r 

L
e
is

u
re

 C
h
a
rg

e
s

(2
5
,0

0
0
)

A
 c

o
m

b
in

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
in

c
re

a
s
e
s
 t
o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e

(2
5
,0

0
0
)

c
e
n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d
 a

m
e
n
d
in

g
 p

ro
fi
t 
s
h
a
re

 f
o
rm

u
la

Agenda Item 13Agenda Page 98



P
R

O
P

O
S

A
L

S
 F

O
R

 I
N

C
R

E
A

S
IN

G
 F

E
E

S
 &

 C
H

A
R

G
E

S
 I
N

 2
0
0
8
/0

9 B
U

D
G

E
T

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
D

D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
A

T
E

IN
C

O
M

E
 A

R
E

A
2
0
0
7
/0

8
P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
IN

C
R

E
A

S
E

£
£

P
e
o

p
le

G
e
t 
U

p
 a

n
d
 G

o
A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

w
h
ic

h
 w

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 c

h
a
rg

e
. 
 T

y
p
ic

a
lly

 3
 d

a
y

(5
,0

0
0
)

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 o

ff
e
ri
n
g
 a

d
d
e
d
 v

a
lu

e
 e

g
 v

is
it
s
, 
p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

to
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 o

n
-l
in

e
.

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
W

h
e
e
le

d
 B

in
s

(1
5
,5

7
0
)

In
c
re

a
s
e
 f
ro

m
 £

3
2
 t
o
 £

4
0
 p

e
r 

b
in

(3
,1

3
0
)

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
E

m
p
ty

in
g
 D

o
g
 W

a
s
te

 B
in

s
(4

,6
1
0
)

E
x
p
e
c
te

d
 n

e
w

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
s
p
o
n
s
o
rs

h
ip

 o
f 
w

a
s
te

 b
in

s
(3

,0
0
0
)

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
P

e
s
t 
C

o
n
tr

o
l 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

(2
1
,4

8
0
)

3
%

 i
n
fl
a
ti
o
n
a
ry

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

(4
9
0
)

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
P

a
rk

in
g
 P

e
rm

it
s

(5
4
,3

7
0
)

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
o
 £

2
6
5
 (

fr
o
m

 £
2
2
0
) 

a
n
d
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
p
e
rm

it
s
.

(2
2
,9

9
0
)

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
P

a
rk

in
g
 F

e
e
s

(5
4
0
,8

0
0
)

N
e
w

 F
la

t 
Ir

o
n
 s

ta
ll 

la
y
o
u
t 
- 

e
x
tr

a
 5

0
 p

a
rk

in
g
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 o

n
 T

u
e
s
d
a
y
s

(9
,8

8
0
)

5
0
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 x

 5
2
 w

e
e
k
s
 x

 £
3
.8

0
 d

a
ily

 i
n
c
o
m

e
/s

p
a
c
e
 =

 £
9
,8

8
0

R
a
ti
o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
ta

ri
ff
s
:-

 S
h
o
rt

 S
ta

y
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

s
(3

8
,6

0
0
)

R
a
ti
o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
ta

ri
ff
s
:-

 L
o
n
g
 S

ta
y
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

s
(2

4
,0

0
0
)

5
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

(2
7
,0

4
0
)

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
In

c
o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 a

m
o
rt

is
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
u
te

d
B

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 £

9
0
,0

0
0
 o

f 
re

c
e
ip

ts
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 
in

to
 r

e
v
e
n
u
e
 e

q
u
a
lly

 o
v
e
r 

1
0
 y

e
a
rs

.
(9

,0
0
0
)

s
u
m

s
 o

n
 P

u
b
lic

 O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
D

 A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 I
N

C
O

M
E

(2
2
3
,3

0
1
)

Agenda Item 13Agenda Page 99



Agenda Page 100

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 17 Agenda Page 101

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Agenda Item 17Agenda Page 104

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 17 Agenda Page 105

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Agenda Item 17Agenda Page 106

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 18 Agenda Page 107

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Agenda Item 18Agenda Page 110

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Introduction of Neighbourhood Working in Chorley
	NeighbourhoodWorking2
	NeighbourhoodWorking3

	6 Forward Plan
	7 Joint District and Lancashire County Council Locality Plan for Chorley
	LocalityPlanDoc

	8 Chorley Partnership - Progress update
	ChPartnershipApp

	9 Housing and Planning Delivery Grant - Consultation On Allocation Mechanism
	10 Growth Point Designation - Expression of Interest Bid
	11 Capital Programme, 2007/08 - Monitoring Report
	CapProg0708MonAppA
	CapProg0708MonAppB
	CapProg0708MonAppC

	13 Approval of draft Budget proposals for 2008/09 for consultation purposes
	17 Market Walk - Phase 2 Update
	MarketWalkletter

	18 People Directorate - Management Restructure

